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HSS: Fast Facts

THE ICT SERVICE DESK RECEIVES OVER

@ 100,000

CALLS PER YEAR

20 million+

MEDIUM SIZED EXAMINATION
GLOVES DISTRIBUTED TO THE
WA HEALTH SYSTEM.

$3.5 billion

PROCUREMENT SPEND

~70 (WHOLE-OF-HEALTH)
CONTRACTS ARE MANAGED BY
THE HEALTH PROCUREMENT
DIRECTORATE.

45,000+

WA HEALTH SYSTEM EMPLOYEES

paid every
fortnight

O/ FILL
99% Rxk: | @
HSS STATE DISTRIBUTION CENTRE

A FILL RATE IS THE PERCENTAGE
OF CUSTOMER DEMAND THAT IS
MET THROUGH IMMEDIATE
STOCK AVAILABILITY.

IN A SINGLE YEAR,
NURSEWEST WILL FILL OVER

90,000

METROPOLITAN SHIFTS AND

2,000

REGIONAL ASSIGNMENTS

ooo
S48

26,000

DESKTOPS AND LAPTOPS AND 2,200
SERVERS MANAGED BY HSS.

=/'
245 CLINICAL L=1]
APPLICATIONS

ARE OFFICIALLY SUPPORTED BY HSS.
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Statement of
Compliance

Hon Roger H COOK
BA GradDipBus MBA MLA
Minister for Health; Mental Health

Deputy Premier

In accordance with section 61 of the
Financial Management Act 2006 (WA),

| hereby submit for your information and
presentation to Parliament, the Annual
Report of Health Support Services for the
financial year ended 30 June 2018.

The Annual Report has been prepared
in accordance with the provisions of the
Financial Management Act 2006 (WA).

s s

Robert Toms

Chief Executive

Health Support Services
Accountable Authority

17 August 2018
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| am very proud of the work
undertaken by HSS in the
2017-18 financial year. The
organisation has delivered
some great outcomes for
our customers and the WA
health system.

Executive
Summary




he 2017-18 financial year was one of significant

change for Health Support Services (HSS)

as the organisation commenced the

implementation of a new Operating Model,

increased our focus on improving customer
experience and introduced a range of improvements to
the way we work.

Our new customer focused Operating Model represents
an important step in the ongoing development of HSS.
An operating model describes how an organisation
delivers value to its customers. Developed in partnership
with our customers, our new Operating Model clearly
defines the capabilities required of a modern shared
services organisation and has led to significant changes
in the way we are organised.

These changes include the creation of new capabilities
around customer experience and transformation, as
well as the reconfiguration of our existing structures
to enhance performance, simplify accountabilities and
improve efficiency.

During the 2017-18 financial year, HSS also undertook

a series of activities to understand our business
performance. This involved assessing the capability of
our processes and systems, as well as the identification
of areas for improvement. This work has led to the
identification of a range of improvement projects
which we expect to commence toward the end of
2018. These improvement projects aim to deliver better
outcomes for our customers across the full range of
services that we provide.

To support these changes, we are focused on
developing a “think customer first” culture. At HSS we
want to be known for placing the customer at the heart
of everything we do whilst always delivering on our
commitments. We want our people to feel empowered
to make decisions and deliver great outcomes for
our customers. Within that context, we took the
opportunity to re-set our corporate values in 2017-18.
Our new corporate values are:

* Think customer first

* We promise, we own, we do

* We will find a way

* We make a difference together

These corporate values clearly indicate how we want
to work at HSS. These values act as principles that
help frame decision making, guide interactions and
focus the choices that we all make day in day out. Our
corporate values also help to guide the plan that has
been developed to support our progression toward a
‘think customer first’ culture.

HSS delivered considerable outcomes for the WA health
system and the people of Western Australia in 2017-18.
The commissioning and opening of Perth Children’s
Hospital was a cause for celebration and many people
across HSS played an important role in this historic
project. Multiple HSS business units and functions
worked closely with our customers to ensure that the
opening of the new hospital was a success.

Executive Su

| want to take this opportunity
to thank our customers for
their ongoing support and,
most importantly, thank all the
people at HSS for their hard
work and dedication through
the past 12 months.

HSS has continued to demonstrate a strong
commitment to meeting its financial and performance
targets during the 2017-18 financial year. In 2017-18,
HSS delivered a net surplus, which was within the

2% budget targets set by Government, whilst also
maintaining a strong balance sheet. Operational
performance continues to improve with the
organisation achieving the majority of its KPIs and
customer SLA targets. Customer satisfaction also
continues to improve, with the most recent result
from the June 2018 quarter indicating that 60% of HSS
customers are either satisfied or highly satisfied with
our performance. We acknowledge that there is still
further work that we can do and we will continue to
focus on building off this foundation in 2018-19.

HSS also contributed to the Sustainable Health Review
by sharing our perspective on the future of the WA
health system, as well as preparing HSS to support the
actions that will follow on from this critical review.

HSS and its people are commmitted to supporting the
recommendations and actions that were identified in
the Service Priority Review and the Special Inquiry into
Government Programs and Projects.

I want to take this opportunity to thank our customers
for their ongoing support. We are absolutely
committed to placing our customers at the heart of
everything we do and understand that the primary
reason that HSS exists is to provide high quality shared
services that enable the delivery of optimal health care.

Most importantly however, | would like to thank all the
people at HSS for their hard work and professionalism
throughout the 2017-18 financial year. | want to express
my appreciation for the positive way in which they
have responded to the changes that are underway.

As | enter my second year as Chief Executive of HSS, |
never cease to be impressed by the dedication that our
people show to their work and their customers. We are
fortunate to have people who genuinely want to enable
better health care here in Western Australia.

Robert Toms
Chief Executive

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018
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Operating Model and Baseline
Performance Review

In late 2017, HSS commenced an Operating Model
and Baseline Performance Review. The Review was
designed to ensure HSS understood the best way

to organise its business in order to deliver value

to its customers and the WA health system, as

well as identify where HSS needed to improve its
performance. The process was a valuable opportunity
for HSS to recognise its organisational strengths and
opportunities for improvement.

The Review commenced by seeking feedback from
our people and our customers about all aspects of
HSS' operations. This feedback, coupled with the
findings from a comparative review of HSS' interstate
shared service peers, informed the design of the

new Operating Model for the organisation and the
development of a broader Business Transformation
Program.

Performance Hig

On Tuesday 5 June 2018, HSS implemented its new
Operating Model and associated organisational
structure. This new way of working will enhance
relationships by focusing on service improvement,
performance and monitoring, building the capability
and capacity of the organisation, and our people, and
support the broader HSS Business Transformation
Program.

In addition, the new Operating Model ensures that the
organisation has a greater strategic focus, increases
opportunities for HSS to deliver on key customer
needs, and provides improved business efficiency and
effectiveness.

The Operating Model introduced two new business
areas. The first is a dedicated function for operational
excellence, transformation, and strategy, which will
support the organisation through required business
performance changes over the next 3-5 years. The
second is a dedicated customer experience function,
which will enhance relationships through simplifying
engagement with our customers and monitoring our
service performance.

In 2018-19, HSS will commence its Business
Transformation Program. This is a program of
improvement initiatives that will be undertaken over
a 2-3 year timeframe which will improve effectiveness,
efficiency and customer experience within HSS'

core services. These initiatives will examine HSS'
processes that are manual or inefficient for customers
and develop system and process improvements
accordingly.

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018 9



Performance Highlights
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Cultural Change within Health
Support Services

Culture change has been a key aspect of the HSS story
in 2017-18.

In 2017-18, HSS commenced a process to review and
develop the HSS Strategic Plan on a Page 2018. As a
result of this work, HSS introduced four key values and
associated behaviours:

1. Think customer first

* We put our customers first in everything we do.

* We listen to our customers; they know their
business best.

* We engage proactively with our customers to find
the best solution.

2. We promise, we own, we do

* We commit to delivery - we do what we say.

* \We take personal ownership - we own the problem
and the outcome.

* We take responsibility for our decisions and actions.

3. We will find a way

* We focus on solutions, not problems.

* We think creatively to develop new and better ways
of delivering on our promises.

* We embrace a positive ‘Yes, we can’ attitude.

4. We make a difference together
* We work together to make a difference to those
delivering patient care.

* We are open and learn from our mistakes and our
successes.

* We speak up, we listen and we take collective
action.



The creation of these values and behaviours was
influenced by the type of culture that HSS would like to
develop and maintain. The HSS culture has been
defined as ‘think customer first’, and focuses on
customer service and has an achievement orientation.
The values were carefully designed to be ‘real and
achievable' to ensure all HSS staff members can
understand how they can contribute to the HSS
culture.

HSS also developed and implemented its 2018 Culture
Development Plan this year. Based on feedback from
our staff and customers, the primary focus of the
Culture Plan is to implement initiatives that allow

HSS to live its ‘think customer first’ culture. Initiatives
implemented to date include the launch of a

peer-to peer recognition program, a values campaign
designed to demonstrate what the HSS values mean
to our staff and improvements to staff induction
processes to focus on culture.

In April 2018, HSS launched the peer-to-peer
recognition program ‘Send a Thank You Note'. Over
150 messages have been sent at the time of writing.
The program helps HSS staff acknowledge their peers’
outstanding efforts by nominating those who are living
the HSS values. Since the launch of the HSS Culture
Development Plan in February 2018, there has been a
marked improvement in customer focus with HSS staff
feeling a sense of ownership for the delivery and
assurance of customer experience.

HSS will continue to monitor progress in the
development of its customer focused service culture
and will look to launch a formal recognition program
in the coming year.

Commissioning of Perth Children’s Hospital

The commissioning and opening of Perth Children’s
Hospital (PCH) was a key part of Western Australia’s
narrative in 2017-18. Supporting the commissioning of
PCH was an operational priority for HSS in 2018. HSS
staff played an important role in this historical delivery,
with various business units and functions working to
ensure the commissioning and opening was a success.

The HSS ICT business unit performed an integral role in
the commissioning and opening. The PCH opening
process involved HSS ICT teams transitioning
approximately 50 existing ICT services and 100 new ICT
services, both clinical and non-clinical, and included
those delivered by contractors with an IT component.

Performance Hig

HSS successfully supported all systems and
infrastructure upon the opening of the new hospital
including heightened support teams to ensure that
PCH staff were provided with responsive on-site
support as required.

HSS Employment Services, Payroll Services and the
Corporate Business Systems functions worked together
to ensure both existing Princess Margaret Hospital staff
and new PCH staff were moved into new roles within
HR systems in preparation for the opening. Minimal
payroll disruption was a priority in the commissioning
and opening period, as was ensuring minimum impact
to the rostering and reporting systems during the
transition period. No significant increase in manual
payroll transactions was reported in the post payroll
transition period and Payroll Client Liaison Officers held
regular sessions on-site to assist PCH staff with any
queries regarding salary and wages during the
transition period.

To ensure PCH was ready for clinical services, the
Procurement and Supply business unit delivered 7,000
common use items that are used routinely to provide
services to patients. To support the hospital in the
delivery of patient care, HSS has retained a team onsite
at PCH to manage ‘Imprest’ or stored common use
items and refill them on a regular basis.

PCH will continue to be an area of focus for HSS as it
moves away from the commissioning and opening
and into business as usual.

Financial performance

HSS demonstrated a strong commitment to meeting
its financial targets in the 2017-18 financial year and
this is reflected in the financial performance of the
organisation.

HSS maintained a strong balance sheet with a positive
cash flow and delivered a 2017-18 net surplus. As a
result of active financial management, the 2017-18
expenditure fell within the 2% budget target set by
Government.

The Agency Expenditure Review targets were once
again met in 2017-18. HSS also met a further
$6.9 million in non-hospital services budget cuts.

HSS continued to support the use of the Voluntary
Targeted Separation Scheme which is expected to
realise $5.5 million in wages savings in forward years.

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018 n



Performance Highlights

A Patient Journey

Meet James. He is 34 years old and works as a Teacher. He lives
in Perth and loves rugby. James is playing rugby one Sunday

when a member of the other team tackles him badly, leaving
him unable to get up and in severe pain. His team members

think he's broken a leg and call him an

ambulance.
V

It's finally time to go - Each and every staff member James

home. James leaves encountered on his patient journey is paid by
on crutches while the HSS Payroll team. On average, the Payroll
thinking he should team will issue payslips to over 45000 WA
find a new sport! health system staff each fortnight.

The X-ray results have
confirmed James has
a broken leg. James’
leg is placed in a cast
and he is prescribed
painkillers to manage
the pain.

. HSS'deveIoped a'nd supports the Notifications and With a care plan in place,
Clinical Summaries system which produces the -
. . - . James is prepared for
discharge summary. A copy is also provided to his discharge and provided with
GP and HSS facilitates it being uploaded to the a discharge summary,

national MyHealthRecord platform.

12 Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018



- HSS supports over 80 hospitals across
Western Australia and many more
smaller sites.

- When James is triaged, his details
are all captured on the Emergency
Department Information System
supported by HSS ICT to ensure
his care can be tracked.

James is taken to a
WA public hospital
and first triaged by
a friendly nurse.

Emergency
Registrar

Dr Clare Wheeler
examines James.

Dr Wheeler sends

James for an X-Ray
to determine if his
leg is broken.

- HSS Supply Chain manages
the Whole-of-Health
Pharmaceutical Products
contract and works to
ensure the best price from
suppliers. Pharmaceuticals
are ordered via the
iPharmacy system which is
administered by HSS ICT.

and skilled

NurseWest nurses.

The X-Ray results are ready, but
Dr Wheeler has forgotten her
health network login password.
She calls the HSS ICT Service

Desk for help.

While waiting on the
results of his X-ray,
James has his vital
signs checked by
one of the friendly

Performance Hig

- The HSS Supply Chain team

within the State Distribution
Centre ensures Dr Wheeler has
examination gloves, sterile
wipes, wound dressings and
other items needed to examine
and treat James.

- Dr Wheeler orders a Radiology
Imaging Assessment via iCM which
will create an order for the WA health
system’s medical imaging solution.
This system is supported by HSS.

- In aregular year, staff
employed by HSS fill
nearly 100,000
vacant casual
Nursing or Assistant
in Nursing shifts and
assignments across
all Western Australia
public hospital sites.

- The HSS ICT Service Desk receives over
100,000 calls for assistance from across the
WA health system each year, including
23,000 requests for password changes.

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018 13
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HSS was established as a statutory authority on
1July 2016 under the Health Services Act 2016 (WA).
HSS provides a suite of Information Communication
Technology (ICT), supply, workforce and financial
services to Western Australia’s public health care
system, including to the Mental Health Commission
and the Health and Disability Services Complaints
Office. HSS provides all services within a Service
Level Agreement framework based on achieving the
standards and expectations of our clients.

HSS' mission is to deliver high quality services to
support the delivery of optimal patient care.

HSS' vision to enable better health care.

HSS' has four core values. Underpinning each of the
HSS values are a series of behaviour statements that
demonstrate how staff can ‘live’ the HSS values each
day.

* Think customer first

o We put our customers first in everything that
we do.

o We listen to our customers; they know their
business best.

o We engage proactively with our customers to
find the best solution.

Overview of

* We promise, we own, we do
o We commit to deliver — we do what we say.

° We take personal ownership — we own the
problem and the outcome.

o We take responsibility for our decisions and
actions.

* We will find a way
© We focus on solutions, not problems.

o We think creatively to develop new and better
ways of delivering on our promises.

© We embrace a positive, 'Yes, we can’, attitude.

* We make a difference together

°o We work together to make a difference to those

delivering patient care.

o We are open and learn from our mistakes and
our successes.

°o We speak up, we listen and we take collective
action

These values underpin not only the corporate mission
and vision, but the actions of all HSS staff. Partnering
with clients and other stakeholders, HSS operates with
a ‘think customer first’ service culture designed to
complement client agency operations.

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018
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Overview of Agency

Legislative
Responsibilities

Enabling Legislation Administered Legislation

HSS was established as a Chief Executive governed * Nil

Health Service Provider under clause 15 of the Health o .

Services (Health Service Provider) Order 2016 (WA) Bills in Parliament as at June 2018:
made by the Minister for Health under section 32 of « Nil

the Health Services Act 2016 (WA).

The HSS Chief Executive is responsible to the Minister
for Health and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the
Department of Health (System Manager) for the
efficient and effective management of the
organisation.

Key legislation impacting on HSS activities

* Criminal Code Act Compilation Act 1913 (WA)
e Electronic Transactions Act 2011 (WA)

* EFqual Opportunity Act 1984 (WA)

Evidence Act 1906 (WA)

* Financial Management Act 2006 (WA)

* Freedom of Information Act 1992 (WA)

* Health Practitioner Regulation National Law (WA)
Act 2010 (WA)

Health Professionals (Special Events Exemption)
Act 2000 (WA)

* Health Services Act 2016 (WA)

Industrial Relations Act 1979 (WA)

* Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 (WA)
* Public Sector Management Act 1994 (WA)

e State Records Act 2000 (WA)

State Supply Commission Act 1991 (WA)

State Trading Concerns Act 1916 (WA)

Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management
Act 1987 (WA)

16 Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018



[
0 2
=
©0
QS
Q5
Owm




Operational Structure

18

Organisationa

Chart

Minister for
Health

Hon Roger Cook
MLA

Director
General

Dr D.J.
Russell-Weisz

Chief Executive
Robert Toms

4 D

Executive Director,
Customer
Experience

Ralph Bates

Responsibilities include:
* Establishment of a
customer contact centre

® Customer contact
centre management

* Customer relationship
management

* Resolution of major
customer issues

* Customer reporting

é )

Executive Director,
Transformation and
Strategy

Jonathan Smith

Responsibilities include:

* Strategy and innovation

* Program and
project delivery

* Business change
management

* Performance
improvement

® Scoping, costing and
planning of initiatives

* Program governance,
scheduling and reporting

4 D

Executive Director,
Workforce and
Organisational

Development

Siobhan Mulvey

Responsibilities include:

* Organisational culture

* Capability and
capacity build

* Organisation wide
learning and development

* Payroll services

* Management of end to
end customer recruitment

* Management of
people data

* Occupational Safety
and Health

* Internal HR
* Nursewest

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018



Operational Str

Chief Information
Officer

Holger Kaufmann

Responsibilities include:

* Infrastructure

* Applications

* Application support
® Service desk

* Field support

* Oversight of major
ICT programs

* Planning and
architecture

® Service operations

® ICT security and risk
management

Chief Financial
Officer

Sash Tomson

Responsibilities include:

* Accounts payable

* Accounts receivable
* Facilities

* Fleet

® Statutory and
management reporting

* Month-end accounting
* Budgeting and planning
* Cash management

* Taxation

* Costing

® SLA/KPI management

Chief Procurement
Officer

Mark Thompson

Responsibilities include:
® Strategic procurement
planning
* Category management
* Warehousing

* Supply and inventory
management

* Procurement

Director, Office of
the Chief Executive

Emily Pestell

Responsibilities include:

¢ Governance
* Risk

* Compliance
* Policy

° Audit

* Internal and external
communication

* Ministerial liaison
* Legal counsel

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018
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Operational Structure

Executive Structure

at 30 June 2018

Chief Executive
Robert Toms

Robert Toms has 20 years' experience in utilities,
retail, mining and management consulting and a
proven track record of developing and implementing
corporate strategy and business transformation. He
also has significant experience with ICT program
delivery, procurement and supply chain optimisation.

Previously in the utilities and mining sectors, Robert
designed and led major Business Transformation
Strategies to reduce expenditure while improving
customer outcomes, organisational performance and
employee engagement.

Robert graduated from Nottingham Trent University
with a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons). He
also holds a Post Graduate Diploma in Management
Studies, a Masters of Business Administration and
completed the London Business School Emerging
Leaders Program.

Chief Financial Officer
Sash Tomson

Sash is a management and finance professional with
over 20 years' experience as a senior executive in the
not-for-profit, government and private sectors. Sash
joined HSS most recently from the mining industry
where he worked as a Chief Financial Officer for the
past five years overseeing projects in Western Australia
and Queensland.

Sash has extensive experience in corporate strategy
and policy, evaluating the financial impact of new
business initiatives, financial modelling, negotiating
and overseeing commercial contracts. Sash has
previously held executive finance positions at the
Telethon Kids Institute, Department of
Communities, and Department of Emergency
Services in Queensland.

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018

Executive Director,
Transformation and Strategy
Jonathan Smith

Jonathan is an experienced transformational and
technology leader with a proven track record

in the development and delivery of customer

centric technology strategy, ICT operations and
transformational change across a broad spectrum of
sectors and business models.

Jonathan has over 20 years' experience leading

a number of organisational and technology
transformations, some of which include an offshore
banking integration and merger for Lloyds Banking
Group, supply chain transformation for CBH Group,
and a rapid expansion program and customer centric
operating model at Bankwest. Jonathan previously
worked as the Program Director for HSS' Digital
Information Security (DIS) program.

Chief Procurement Officer
Mark Thompson

Mark has more than 20 years' experience at a senior
management level in the telecommunications, utilities
and healthcare industries in the government, private
and not for profit sectors. Mark has led numerous
multi-disciplinary teams covering procurement,
contract management, purchasing, supply chain,
fleet, sales and bidding. He has extensive experience in
strategy and complex negotiations.

Mark has also managed a large warehousing and
logistics function, and led one of Western Australia’s
largest and most complex fleets. Previously, Mark has
implemented a major procurement operating model,
which included the development of a long-term
sustainable supply chain strategy.



Chief Information Officer
Holger Kaufmann

Holger joined HSS with nearly 20 years' experience in
executive management roles, a strong commercial
acumen and a proven track record in large and
complex ICT environments.

Most recently, Holger has been driving the digital
transformation of the Western Australian public sector
as Executive Director of the GovNext-ICT infrastructure
reform program, working closely with Chief Information
Officers and other senior stakeholders across the public
and private sectors (including HSS). Prior to joining the
Office of the Government Chief Information Officer,
Holger was an executive team member of a national

IT consultancy, and has held a number of senior
management positions both locally and in Europe.

Executive Director, Workforce and
Organisational Development
Siobhan Mulvey

Siobhan has 25 years' experience as a senior executive
in the education, training and mining sectors in both
private industry and government. She has led work in
strategy development and execution, organisational
development, and culture change. She has a strong
commitment to the development of an organisational
culture that supports, encourages and rewards the
achievement of business outcomes.

Siobhan has most recently been a Partnerin a
boutique consultancy firm, Black House, where

she worked on long-term projects with the West
Australian Football Commission and the Western
Australian Cricket Association. Prior to that, she held
senior management positions with Rio Tinto and the
Department of Training and Workforce Development.

Executive Director, Customer Experience
Ralph Bates

Ralph is a strong advocate of customer experience
strategy and engagement, who, throughout his
extensive executive career, has ensured organisations
focus on the value they create for their customers.
Ralph's passion for customer experience led him

to start his own consultancy business to assist
organisations in moving from customer experience
strategy to action.

Ralph has over 15 years' experience in developing

and executing enterprise customer strategy, driving
customer focused business improvements, profit and
loss oversight, staff development and leadership. Ralph
has also previously held senior management positions
at RAC (Western Australia), Alinta, Barclaycard and
British Gas.

Operational Str

Director, Office of the Chief Executive
Emily Pestell

Emily has worked for the Western Australian State
Government for the past six years; initially at the
Department of Finance. Emily joined the WA health
system in 2014. Prior to her current role, Emily was a
member of the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer
and played a key part in the delivery of the Strategic
Procurement Program for the WA health system,
which won a WA Premier's Award and a WA Health
Excellence Award, both in 2015.

During her time as Director, Office of the Chief
Executive (OCE), Emily has established the OCE as

a standalone Business Unit and coordinated key
strategic priorities such as the HSS strategic planning
process and the development of the HSS Culture
Development Plan 2018.

HSS Senior Officers

The HSS Executive structure displayed above includes
all officers who were members of the HSS Executive

as at 30 June 2018. Other officers who occupied senior
positions for a period greater than three months during
2017-18 were:

Stephen Pattison

Acting General Manager ICT Business
Engagement and Policy

19 December 2016 to 19 January 2018

Frank Patterson

Acting General Manager ICT
Business Engagement and Policy
20 January 2018 to 25 May 2018

Julie Feeney
Acting General Manager Corporate Services
29 November 2017 to 1June 2018

Bill Bleakley
General Manager Corporate Services
7 August 2017 to 1June 2018

William Monaghan
Acting Chief Procurement Officer
22 July 2016 to 1June 2018

Rob Henry
Chief Financial Officer
1July 2016 to 1June 2018

Rolly Hester

Acting General Manager ICT
Service Delivery and Operations
7 November 2016 to 1June 2018

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018 21



Operational Structure

HSS Roles and
Responsibilities

Procurement and Supply

The Procurement and Supply business unit is
responsible for providing procurement and supply
chain services across the WA health system. This
includes clinical, medical equipment, ICT and other
health related contracts. They use the buying power of
the WA health system to get best value for customers.

Procurement and Supply focuses on category
management to drive value for money through
procurement. The business unit seeks to deliver value
through enhanced supplier relationships as well as
increase customer responsiveness by reducing lead
times in critical sourcing for health.

Procurement and Supply aims to deliver rigorous
stewardship and risk management to protect the WA
health system through the integration of category
relationships.

This business unit's functions include inventory,
warehouse operations and distribution, procurement
and category management. The unit is also responsible
for a Commercial Operations function that provides
analysis on spend and procurement intelligence to
inform business decisions. Procurement and Supply
also performs a system-wide Procurement Policy and
Governance function for the WA health system.

Workforce and Organisational Development

Workforce and Organisational Development is
responsible for building the capability and capacity of
HSS staff and developing a customer focused culture to
enable a successful transformation agenda.

The business unit works to boost the importance of
people management across HSS, empower staff to
make decisions, and build capability. It also seeks to
provide and increase support for leaders within HSS, as
well as advocating for a customer focused culture.

Workforce and Organisational Development

consists of 3 functions. Human Resource and
Capability, which provides strategic development of
HSS capability. This includes activities such as human
resources, learning and development and workforce
planning. Employee Services oversees human
resources services offered to HSS' customers including
recruitment and appointment processes and
management of people data. The business unit also
includes NurseWest, which supplies the WA health
system with casual and fixed term nurses.
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Information and Communication Technology

Under the HSS Operating Model, the ICT business
unit provides technology services for the WA health
system. Ensuring round the clock service provision for
both clinical and business systems, the ICT business
unit is responsible for the strategic transformation of
WA Health's ICT system to align with new technology,
appropriate use of data and manages ICT risks.

Led by the Chief Information Officer, the ICT

business unit manages and mitigates risk in the ICT
environment while increasing the maturity of the WA
health system’s ICT function by introducing planning
and demand management capability. ICT also delivers
major change programs to support the WA health
system.

As the largest business unit in HSS, ICT includes a
variety of functions. The Program Delivery function
oversees key initiatives such as GovNext and EMPI
while Planning and Architecture works with relevant
ICT stakeholders to develop and maintain ICT strategy,
policy and standards. The Applications function
provides ongoing ownership and management of the
corporate and clinical applications which support the
WA health system.

ICT also includes the Infrastructure business function,
which manages the ICT infrastructure within the WA
health system. The Service Operations function
responds to, and oversees, incident management,
software management and application support.
Lastly, Security and Risk Management is an important

focus for HSS as this function creates awareness around

ICT risk and information security.

Operational Str

Finance and Operations

HSS Finance and Operations unit is responsible for
maintaining a strategic focus on provision of a value for
money service through timely processing of financial
services for customers. The business unit also manages
service level agreements and are responsible for
managing HSS' internal finance and operations.

The Finance and Operations business unit consists of 3
business functions. The Accounts Payable function
manages the consolidated accounts payable services
across the WA health system. Finance manages HSS'
internal accounting and financial reporting
responsibilities, and operational services. The unit also
has an Analytics and Reporting business function that
monitors and reports on HSS' performance against
agreed measures as well as providing a central
analytics capability for HSS performance data.
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Office of the Chief Executive

The Office of the Chief Executive ensures the Chief
Executive is adequately supported in delivering on the
expectations of the organisation by providing oversight
of policy, governance, audit and risk. The Office of the
Chief Executive continues to build on and enhance its
strengths including managing advisory groups and
interactions with Government.

The Office of the Chief Executive includes the Audit
function, which oversees HSS' audit activities, monitors
progress against findings and interacts with the Office
of the Auditor General. The Governance, Risk and
Compliance function manages the governance, risk
and compliance of HSS, as well as HSS-wide policy,
ministerial and Freedom of Information requests. The
Communications function is responsible for internal
and external communications as well as public
relations.

Customer Experience

The newly formed Customer Experience business unit
is responsible for customer relationship management
and customer experience across HSS. The business
unit has been established as a customer-facing
channel to ensure that HSS delivers services that are
aligned to our customer focused strategy. This also
provides a clear escalation path for HSS' customers to
engage with us to resolve issues.

Business functions within Customer Experience
include Customer Relationships, which provides
relationship management services across the WA
health system and is a contact point for senior WA
health system stakeholders. The business unit works
closely with other HSS areas to resolve escalated
customer issues and ensure HSS' requirements and
expectations are understood. The Customer Experience
function will look to implement a unified HSS Contact
Centre, which will provide a first, and central, point of
contact for non-ICT customer enquiries enabling faster
resolution of routine customer queries. This approach
will allow other core HSS business units to focus on
more complex and specialist enquiries as well as
business as usual.

Transformation and Strategy

The Transformation and Strategy business unit
oversees HSS-wide strategy, as well as management,
reporting and oversight of programs to transform
HSS' business. This will lead to an improvement in
customer experience and provide value for money for
the WA health system. Transformation and Strategy
works with the HSS Executive to develop and
maintain a HSS strategy that meets the requirements
of the WA health system.

Transformation and Strategy is responsible for the
delivery of the Transformation Program of Work across
HSS and also the Program Management Office which
scopes, prioritises and manages program governance.

The Change Management function takes carriage of
the implementation of the change program with a
focus on minimising risk to business as usual.




Performance

Operational Str

Management

Framework

To comply with its legislative obligation as a Statutory
Authority, HSS operates under the Outcome Based
Management (OBM) performance management
framework.

The WA health system’'s Outcome Based Management
Policy Framework specifies the requirements that HSS
must comply with in order to ensure the integrity of
the OBM Framework. This framework describes how
outcomes, services and key performance indicators are
used to measure HSS' performance towards achieving
the relevant overarching whole of government goal.

HSS' outcome based management framework did not
change in 2017-18.

Shared

Responsibilities
with Other Agencies

HSS works closely with its customers to ensure

it delivers the best possible shared services. HSS'
customers include: the Department of Health, Health
Service Providers, the Mental Health Commission and
the Health and Disability Services Complaints Office.

HSS contributes to the desired outcomes of its
customers by providing modern, accurate and timely
financial, human resource, supply and ICT shared
services.
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Agency Perfor

Certification of Key Performance Indicators

HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES

CERTIFICATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

[ hereby certify the key performance indicators are based on proper
records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess Health
Support Services and fairly represent the performance of the Authority for
the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

” :
/ y 7
y
{x/r:&’/f/f A 2 <
Robert Toms
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES

ACCOUNTABLE AUTHORITY
11 September 2018

o
/ 0AG
[ AUDITED)

2/
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Key Performance Indicators

Outcome 3 Page
Average cost of Accounts Payable services per transaction 29
Average cost of Accounts Receivable services per transaction 30
Average cost of Payroll and Support Services to HSS’ customers 31
Average cost of Supply Services by purchasing transaction 32
Average cost of providing ICT services to HSS’ clients 33
The percentage of responses from HSS customers who are satisfied or highly
satisfied with the overall service provided by HSS 34

To comply with its legislative obligation as a Statutory Authority, HSS operates under
the Outcome Based Management (OBM) performance management framework.

The WA health system’s Outcome Based Management Policy Framework specifies
the requirements that HSS must comply with in order to ensure the integrity of the
OBM Framework. This framework describes how outcomes, services and key
performance indicators are used to measure HSS’ performance towards achieving
the relevant overarching whole of government goal.

Outcome 3 - Strategic Effectiveness KPI Service 10 — Health Percentage of responses

leadership, planning and Support Services from WA Health Service

support services that Providers and Department

enable a safe, high quality of Health who are satisfied

and sustainable WA or highly satisfied with the

Health system overall service provided by
Health Support Services

Efficiency KPIs Service 10 - Health Average cost of Accounts
Support Services Payable Services per

Transaction

Average cost
of Accounts Receivable
Services per transaction

Average cost of payroll
and support services to
Health Support Services’
clients

Average cost of supply
services by purchasing
transaction

Average cost of providing
ICT services to Health
Support Services’ clients
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Agency Performance

Outcome 3

Efficiency KPI
Service 10: Health
Support Service

Average cost of Accounts Payable services per transaction

Rationale

HSS’ role is to provide shared services function to its clients. This includes the
functions of accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll services, supply services
and the management and delivery of the ICT network.

This KPI aligns to the role of HSS as a Health Service provider in ensuring
‘the operations of the health service provider are carried out efficiently, effectively
and economically’. This KPI captures the role of HSS in delivering transactional
accounts payable finance services to its clients in an efficient manner.

2017- 2018 Budget Target

The target average cost of accounts payable services per transaction for HSS for the
2017- 2018 Financial Year was $5.00.

Results

The average cost of accounts payable services per transaction for HSS for the
2017-2018 Financial Year is $7.54. HSS exceeded target by $2.54 per transaction.
This was predominately due to the reallocation of costs for the Spectacle Subsidy
Scheme from accounts receivable to accounts payable. In 2016-17, Spectacle
Subsidy Scheme costs were apportioned across accounts payable and accounts
receivable in line with the approved costing and pricing model. Following customer
consultation, this cost was fully aligned to accounts payable in 2017-18. In the
2018-2019 financial year, these targets will be subject to change to reflect these
changes in the business model.

Result Result Target
Performance Measure 16/1 7 17/18 17/18
. . 5.00

Average cost of Accounts Payable
services per transaction

Data Sources: Oracle Financials, HR Data Warehouse, Health Support Services unpublished data.
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Outcome 3
Efficiency KPI
Service 10: Health
Support Service

Average cost of Accounts Receivable services per transaction

Rationale

HSS’ role is to provide shared services function to its clients. This includes the
functions of accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll services, supply services
and the management and delivery of the ICT network.

This KPI aligns to the role of HSS as a Health Service provider in ensuring ‘the
operations of the health service provider are carried out efficiently, effectively and
economically’. This KPI captures the role of HSS in delivering transactional accounts
receivable finance services to clients in an efficient manner.

2017- 2018 Budget Target

The target average cost of accounts receivable services per transaction for HSS for
the 2017- 2018 Financial Year was $28.00.

Results

The average cost of accounts receivable services per transaction for HSS for the
2017-2018 Financial Year is $15.76 which was below target by $12.24 per transaction.
This was predominately due to the reallocation of costs for the Spectacle Subsidy
Scheme from accounts receivable to accounts payable. In 2016-17, Spectacle
Subsidy Scheme costs were apportioned across accounts payable and accounts
receivable in line with the approved costing and pricing model. Following customer
consultation, this cost was fully aligned to accounts payable in 2017-18. As well as
this HSS’ system reporting costs which were previously allocated across all services
have now been recognised solely as an ICT costs this year resulting in a lower
average cost of accounts receivable per transaction.

In the 2018-2019 financial year, these targets will be subject to change to reflect these
changes in the business model.

Result Result Target
Performance Measure 16/17 17/18 17/18
$ $ $

Average cost of Accounts Receivable

: ) 29.98 15.76 28.00
services per transaction

Data Sources: Oracle Financials, HR Data Warehouse, Health Support Services unpublished data.
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Agency Performance

Outcome 3
Efficiency KPI
Service 10: Health
Support Service

Average cost of Payroll and Support Services to HSS customers

Rationale

HSS role is to provide shared services function to its clients. This includes the functions
of accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll services, supply services and the
management and delivery of the ICT network.

As a WA Health shared services organisation, HSS performs a range of employment
and payroll services on behalf of its clients. This indicator measures the efficiency of
HSS to provide the continuum of ‘hire to retire’ workforce services to HSS clients.

2017- 2018 Budget Target

The target average cost of payroll and support services per average FTE to HSS
customers for the 2017- 2018 Financial Year was $981.00.

Results

The average cost of payroll and support services to HSS clients for the 2017-2018
Financial Year is $992.40 which is within 1.2 percent of the target.

Result Result Target
Performance Measure 16/17 17/18 17/18
$ $ $

Average cost of payroll and support

services to HSS’ clients Tz | Eenal AL

Data Sources: Oracle Financials, HR Data Warehouse, HSS unpublished data.
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Outcome 3
Efficiency KPI
Service 10: Health
Support Service

Average cost of Supply Services by purchasing transaction

Rationale

HSS role is to provide shared services function to its clients. This includes the functions
of accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll services, supply services and the
management and delivery of the ICT network.

HSS'’ role within WA Health is to seek to improve efficiencies in supply, procurement
and contract management in order to support improved value for money for WA
Health. This indicator measures the efficiency of HSS to provide supply chain services
to its customers.

2017- 2018 Budget Target

The target average cost of supply services per transaction to HSS for the 2017-2018
Financial Year was $46.00.

Results

The average cost of supply services per transaction to HSS for the 2017-2018
Financial Year is $38.24. HSS was lower than target by $7.76 per transaction. This
is predominately due to a reallocation from supply services to ICT for HSS’ system
reporting costs which have now been recognised solely as an ICT cost this year and
an increase in volumes of purchasing transactions between years.

In the 2018-2019 financial year, these targets will be subject to change to reflect these
changes in the business model.

Result Result Target
Performance Measure 16/17 17/18 17/18
$ $ $

Average cost of Supply Services by 50.17 38.24 46.00
purchasing transaction ’ ’ ’

Data Sources: Oracle Financials, HR Data Warehouse, Health Support Services unpublished data.
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Agency Performance

Outcome 3
Efficiency KPI
Service 10: Health
Support Service

Average cost of providing ICT services to HSS’ clients

Rationale

HSS role is to provide shared services function to its clients. This includes the
functions of accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll services, supply services
and the management and delivery of the ICT network.

HSS role within WA Health is to seek to implement and maintain an updated
computer operating environment, removing difficulties encountered by staff in
using outdated operating and other systems. This indicator measures the ability of
HSS to deliver ICT services to its customers in an efficient manner.

2017- 2018 Budget Target

The target average cost of providing ICT services to HSS clients for the
2017-2018 Financial Year was $4,423.00.

Results

The average cost of providing ICT services to HSS clients for the 2017-2018
Financial Year is $4,625.83, within 4.59% of the target. HSS exceeded the target by
$202.83 per FTE. This was predominately due to the ICT budget being increased
after the setting of the KPI targets. The increased budget allocation was to
account for the increase in expenditure to facilitate support of Perth Children’s
Hospital deliverables. As well as this, HSS’ system reporting costs which were
previously allocated across all services as an overhead have now been recognised
solely in our ICT costs this year.

Result Result Target
Performance Measure 16/17 17/18 17/18
$ $ $

Averagfe cost of providing ICT services 434630 4,625.83 4.423.00
to HSS’ customers

Data Sources: Oracle Financials, HR Data Warehouse, HSS unpublished data.
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Outcome 3
Effectiveness KPI
Service 10: Health
Support Service

The percentage of responses from HSS customers who are satisfied
or highly satisfied with the overall service provided by HSS

Rationale

HSS role is to provide shared services function to its clients. This includes the
functions of accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll services, supply services
and the management and delivery of the ICT network.

This KPI reports the satisfaction levels of services delivered to HSS customers. On a
quarterly basis, service recipients will be provided with a survey to complete and the
responses will measure the extent to which the expectations of service delivery
by HSS were met.

Target

The 2017-18 target is set at 50% customer satisfaction. A result above the target is
desirable. HSS has exceeded its target of 50% in 2017-18 and has significantly
improved on its 2016-2017 result.

Results
2018 HSS Stakeholder Engagement Result Result Target
Survey 16/17 17/18 17/18
Highly Satisfied 4.55% 0.00%
Satisfied 43.18% 66.67%
Total Percentage Satisfied 47.73%  66.67% >50%

Data Sources: Responses to the survey, as received by Health Support Services.
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Agency Perfor

Summary
of KPlIs

HSS' Key Performance Indicators measure the
efficiency and effectiveness of the services provided by
HSS in order to achieve the desired stated outcome.

A summary of HSS Key Performance Indicators from
the 2017-18 period is provided. This should be read in
conjunction with detailed information on each key
performance indicator found in the Key Performance
Indicators section of this report.

. 2017-18
Key Performance Indicators Actual Target
Efficiency Indicators
Average cost of Accounts Payable services per transaction $7.54 $5.00
Average cost of Accounts Receivable services per transactions $15.76 $28.00
Average cost of Payroll and support services to Health Support Services clients $992.40 $981.00
Average cost of Supply Services by purchasing transaction $38.24 $46.00
Average cost of providing ICT services to Health Support Services clients $4,625.83 $4.423.00
Effectiveness Indicators

The P t f f WA Health Service Provid dD t t of Health

e Percentage of responses from ea ervice Providers and Department of Hea 66.67% 20.00%

who are satisfied with the overall service provided by Health Support Services
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Actual Results vs
Budget Targets

The total cost of providing services to the WA health
system in 2017-18 was $253,295 million.

Results for 2017-18 against agreed financial targets
(based on Budget statements) are presented with full
details of HSS' financial performance during 2017-18
provided in the Financial Statements section of

this report.

2017-18 2017-18 2017-18

Target Actual Variation

($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Total cost of services 249,370 253,295 -3925
Net cost of services 240912 244,081 -3,169
Total Equity 307,341 321,230 -13,889
Net increase/decrease in cash held - 10,505 -10,505
Approved Full time equivalent staff level (salary associated with FTE) 1,018 1,027 -9
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Current and Emerging

Significant

Issues and Trends

Movement to GovNext environment and
challenging the way we have delivered ICT
services in the past

GovNext is a WA Government wide project

to modernise ICT in the public sector. As part of this
project, WA government agencies are

moving from a model of individual ownership of ICT
infrastructure to procuring ICT infrastructure as an
external service. The GovNext strategy aims to deliver
long-term savings across the public sector by
reducing ICT infrastructure duplication, harnessing
whole-of-government buying power and ensuring
interconnecting government ICT.

The WA health system'’s part of this project has been
dubbed ‘HealthNext' and HSS played a vital role in the
design and preliminary planning activities required for
the project in 2017-18. Since the commmencement of
HealthNext in September 2017, a large team of HSS
staff members have worked on the project to consider
and develop new and better ways of delivering ICT
infrastructure to the WA health system.

In 2017-18, a HSS project team delivered the
HealthNext Business Case which included the
respective Work Package Evaluation costings. The
tender and evaluation of the Work Packages was
completed and the procurement process
commenced, with planning workshops scheduled
for July 2018 with the successful procurement
respondents.

Keeping pace with technological change
and responding to new and different cyber
security issues / threats

HSS has embraced digital transformation with
innovations in patient care and advances in the
workplace for our customers. These new capabilities
were embraced with appropriate management

of any potential risks of these technologies.

In 2017-18 HSS established the Digital Information
Security (DIS) program to develop a comprehensive
program of work for those risks that will not be
addressed by digital transformation. The DIS and other
programs seek to systematically address known risks,
develop capabilities to detect and minimise new risks,

and plan the transition to new technologies. Through
use of planned programs of work, HSS has ensured
that the risk management approach is thorough,
programmatic and cost-effective.

Cyber security crime and personal privacy information
abuse are a constantly evolving set of threats in the
healthcare space. The perpetrators of these crimes are
increasingly professional, often operating with support
of organised crime organisations. The DIS program will
ensure the WA health system is equipped with dynamic
threat detection and is positioned to ensure appropriate
responses are in place to meet these challenges.

The DIS program commenced the delivery of cyber
security training to all HSS team members to assist in
creating greater awareness about cyber security and to
ensure that HSS staff have the ability to respond to
cyber threats with confidence.

Attracting and retaining a skilled workforce

To continue supporting the WA health system’s shared
service requirements and to ensure the future needs of
the WA health system are met, HSS requires a capable,
adequately trained and appropriately skilled workforce.
HSS is committed to developing internal staff with a
wide range of expertise and approaches while seeking
to position HSS as an ‘employer of choice’ to acquire
talent from outside the organisation.

HSS is developing the capability of leaders and
managers to support them in leading a strong,
innovative and productive workforce. This will

be achieved by providing effective leadership
development programs, improving current
performance development practices, assessing
existing recruitment and retention strategies and
modifying them to incorporate new skill sets, training
needs, and employee requirements.

While developing internal talent is an important focus,
HSS is also looking to strengthen the capability pool by
recruiting strong and experienced leaders and
managers. HSS seeks to build solid practices in all
functional areas as well as leadership capability that
contributes to the efficient provision of services across
the WA health system which will ensure the future
needs of the WA health system’s customers are met.
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Significant Issues

Changes in
Written Law

In 2017-18, Outcome Based Management framework
reporting was introduced to health service providers.

HSS had adopted this reporting in 2016-17 and as a
result, this Change in Written Law is not applicable.

As a newly formed organisation, HSS did not have KPIs
previously with Treasury and adopted the outcome
based management framework reporting in 2016-17 in
order to meet reporting requirements.
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Disclosure and Compliance

Ministerial
Directives

Treasurer’s Instructions 902 (12) requires disclosing
information on any Ministerial Directives relevant to the
setting of desired outcomes or operational objectives,
the achievement of desired outcomes or operational
objectives, investment activities, and financing
activities.

Although no Ministerial Directives were issued to

HSS in 2017-18, the Minister for Health provided a
Statement of Expectation in November 2017, which set
out the Minister's expectations for the functions and
responsibilities of HSS, as well as its accountabilities
and priorities. HSS responded to this with a Statement
of Intent in January 2018.

Both of these documents are available on the WA
health system website.
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Pecuniary
Interests

Senior Officers of government agencies are required to
declare any interest in an existing or proposed contract
that has, or could result in, the member receiving a
financial benefit and/or present an actual, potential or
perceived conflict of interest.

In 2017-18, all HSS Executives submitted annual
declarations regarding this requirement. No perceived,
potential or actual conflicts of interest, or interests in
any contracts that may provide a financial benefit,
were identified.

Disclosure and Com

Annual Report 2017-2018
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Disclosure and Compliance

Boards and
Committees
Remuneration

HSS was established as a Chief Executive governed
Health Service Provider in the Health Services (Health
Service Provider) Order 2016 (WA) made by the Minister
for Health under section 32 of the Health Services Act
2016 (WA).

The Chief Executive is responsible to the Minister for
Health and the CEO of the Department of Health
(System Manager) for the efficient and effective
management of the organisation. As such, HSS does
not provide remuneration for boards or commmittees.

Pricing
Policy

HSS receives state appropriation from the Department
of Health. HSS does not invoice Health Services Providers
or clients for the services provided.

Currently HSS provides resources free of charge to each
of the following reporting entities:

Child and Adolescent Health Service

East Metropolitan Health Service

Health and Disability Services Complaints Office
Mental Health Commission

North Metropolitan Health Service
Quadriplegic Centre

South Metropolitan Health Service

WA Country Health Service
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Capital Works

Disclosure and Com

There were no capital works completed in the 2017-18 Financial Year.

Capital works in progress in 2017-18 Financial Year

2016-17
Estim . . nd 2017-1
stimated Reported in . Expected Estimated ° d . 0. 8
. Total Cost Variance . variation
Project Name . 2016-17 , Completion Cost to
in 2016-17 ($'000) ($'000) Date Complete to cost
($'000) P explanation
(>=10%)
ICT Minor Works Program 4,000 4,000 - 2018-19 ]
Replacement of
Medical Imaging
System (Picture Archive 52,525 52,557 32 2021-22 50,219
Communication System
- Radiology Information
System)
Continued rollout of the
Patient Administration 13670 - 13,670 2018-19 8,896 New Project

System (PAS)

a) The above information is based upon the:
i 2017-18 published budget papers.
ii 2016-17 published budget papers.
b) Completion timeframes are based upon a combination of known dates at the time of reporting
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Disclosure and Compliance

Employee Profile

The Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staffing within HSS in the 2017-18 financial year was 1,027.

Health Support Services

Category Definition 2016-17 2017-18

Includes all clinical-based
occupations together with
patient-facing (ward) clerical
support staff.

Administration and clerical 901.4 918.0

Includes FTE associated with
the following occupational
Agency categories: administration 426 510
and clerical, hotel services and
other.

Includes all nursing
Nursing occupations. Does not include 39 29
agency nurses.

Includes catering, cleaning,
Hotel Services stores/supply, laundry and 556 547
transport occupations.

Includes Aboriginal and
Other Categories ethnic health worker related 0.6 05
occupations

Total 1,004.1 1,027.0

Industrial Relations

HSS receives industrial relations support from System Wide Industrial Relations at the Department of Health.
Industrial relations advice to HSS relates to discipline, performance, claims for permanency, change management
processes, industrial disputes and fitness for work matters.

HSS ensures compliance with the WA Health Industrial Relations Policy and provides advisory services through the
HR branch around industrial relations.

HSS consults with System Wide Industrial Relations as appropriate and where directed. Where HSS receives
formal contact from union bodies, HSS is obliged to notify State Wide Industrial Relations who are responsible for
coordinating formal responses on behalf of HSS.
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Advertisin

In 2017-18, in accordance with section 175ZE of the
Electoral Act 1907 (WA), HSS incurred no
advertising costs.

Disability
AcCcess

The Disability Services Act 1993 (WA) was introduced
to ensure that people with a disability have the same
opportunities to fully access the range of services,
facilities and information available to all members of
the public. The Act also requires public authorities
ensure that people with a disability have equal
opportunities for employment.

HSS is continually seeking to improve accessibility for
any Western Australian wanting to engage with HSS,
including people with a disability. All HSS facilities are
accessible to people with a disability, with dedicated
parking bays maintained for those with disabilities.
General access areas are on the ground floor level of all
HSS facilities and these areas include motion-activated
and timed access doors.

Requirements for staff with a disability are considered
and accommodated in the planning of any events
and/or services. This includes choosing appropriate
venues that are compliant with recommended access

Disclosure and Com

guidelines in relation to access, ease of movement
within the building, parking arrangements, transport
and travel to and from the building.

All communication materials can be provided in
alternate formats to ensure equitable access to
information for people with a disability. HSS complies
with the WA Health Recruitment, Selection and
Appointment Policy and associated procedures which
forms part of the WA health system’'s Employment
Policy Framework. This ensures recruitment and
selection is undertaken in a consistent, inclusive and
open and transparent manner. Training is provided to
those participating in selection processes to ensure full
understanding of the relevant public sector standards,
legislation and regulations, including those that relate
to disability discrimination.

47
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Disclosure and Compliance

Public Sector
Standards and
Ethical Codes

Public Sector Standards have been developed to
support the principles of appropriate behaviour
outlined in the Western Australia Public Sector
Commission’s Code of Ethics. HSS also ensures
employee compliance with the WA Health Code of
Conduct which forms part of the WA health system's
Employment Policy Framework.

HSS employees are expected to uphold the Public
Sector Standards and the WA Health Code of Conduct
and are responsible for ensuring their behaviour
reflects the Code of Ethics. To assist HSS employees

to understand and comply with the principles of
workplace behaviour and conduct, information
regarding Public Sector Standards is provided

at Corporate Induction, ad-hoc presentations to
employees and through a number of professional and
learning development courses.

Structures are in place to ensure Breach of Standard
claims are reported to the Public Sector Commission as
required and complainants are provided with advice on

Structures are in place to ensure
Breach of Standard claims are
reported to the Public Sector
Commission as required and
complainants are provided with
advice on the ability to lodge a
breach should they wish.

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018

the ability to lodge a breach should they wish.

Where a breach of standard has been lodged, an
internal assessment is undertaken and HSS complies
with the Public Sector Commmission Managing Breach
Claims Agency Guide.

In 2017-18, two breach claims were lodged regarding
the recruitment, selection and appointment process.
One was withdrawn and the other was lodged at the
Public Sector Commission but not upheld.

In 2017-18, HSS identified four suspected compliance
issues with the Code of Conduct. Of these issues, one
has been upheld. Three issues are still undergoing the
disciplinary process and no decision has been made as
to whether a final breach has occurred.



Record
Keeping Plans

The State Records Act 2000 (WA) mandates the
standardisation of statutory recordkeeping practices
for every State Government agency. HSS complies with
State Records Act 2000 (WA).

HSS is committed to maintaining systems that enable
employees to manage transactional and corporate
content to support business practices. All HSS business
records, correspondence that enters HSS for business
purposes or supports evidence of business activity

and decision making is identified and captured in an
electronic records management system. All employees
within HSS are required to undertake mandatory
Recordkeeping Awareness Training.

The record management practice within HSS
is outlined in a framework of accountabilities,
responsibilities and the statutory basis for the
implementation and ongoing improvement of
recordkeeping solutions.
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Disclosure and Compliance

Employee
Development

HSS is committed to the continuous development All HSS employees are provided with access to a

of a highly capable, appropriately skilled and comprehensive calendar of training events to support
qualified workforce. HSS recognises that an ongoing ongoing development. In 2017-18, 94 short duration
commitment to staff development helps attract and training events were delivered internally, developing
retain talented employees. key workplace skills of HSS employees.

HSS has a commitment to build the capabilities of our In addition, HSS employees are also supported to
frontline leaders and equip them to lead a customer access technical and professional training as required.
focused service culture. The HSS Team Leader In 2017-18 HSS employees participated in 136 externally
Program provides team leaders and team members provided short courses to extend their specific

with leadership potential by providing the opportunity professional or technical skills.

to achieve a Certificate IV in Leadership and
Management. In 2018 the inaugural cohort of HSS
participants graduated from the program and two
additional cohorts commenced.
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Workers'’

Disclosure and Com

Compensation

HSS is committed to providing staff with a safe and

healthy work environment.

In 2017-18 a total of seven new workers' compensation

claims were made.

Workers’ Compensation Claims - Nature of the Injuries

2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15
All Other Diseases 0 2 1 o]
Burns 1 6] ] 1
Confusion and Crushing 0 o] 2 1
Fractures 0 1 1 1
Foreign Bodies ] (o] o] 0
Sprains, Strains and Disclocations 1 4 5 8
Superficial Injury 0 o] 2 0
Mental Disorders 3 2 2 ¢}
Musculoskeletal System 1 1 o] 0
Open Wound 1 o] o] 1
Total Number of Workplace Injuries 7 10 13 12
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Substantive

Equality

HSS contributes towards substantive equality for all
Western Australians through the implementation of
the Policy Framework for Substantive Equality.

The Framework provides a clear direction for HSS as
an employer and service provider by addressing the
potential for systemic discrimination and promoting
sensitivity to the different needs of HSS' client groups.

In 2017-18 HSS commenced implementation of

its inaugural Workforce Plan, with focus on the
development of a workplace environment that values
the employment and retention of Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander employees.
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The following strategies for increasing workforce
diversity were actioned:

a communication campaign calling all HSS

employees to refresh their personal diversity
information, which enabled a more accurate
baseline measure of HSS workforce diversity;

participation in the WA health system pilot
application of Section 51 of the Equal Opportunity
Act 1984 to increase its Aboriginal workforce;

planning of an Aboriginal Cadetship Program to
commence in the second half of 2018; and

ongoing development of employees’
understanding and respect for Aboriginal culture
and perspectives with 80% of HSS staff having
undertaken Aboriginal cultural awareness training.




OSH and Injury

Disclosure and Com

Management

HSS recognises its responsibility under the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 (WA) and
associated legislation. HSS is committed to ensuring
the safety, health and welfare of its employees,
contractors and visitors.

Appropriate safety training is provided to all employees
in order to meet the requirements of the Occupational
Safety and Health Act 1984 (WA) and Occupational
Safety and Health Regulations 1996 (WA). HSS
complies with legal requirements to implement

safe systems and work practices that reflect its
commitment to providing a safe workplace.

HSS has a dedicated Occupational Safety and Health
(OSH) Framework and Policy with annual strategic
goals and targets for occupational safety, health and
injury management performance. Employees are

also educated in OSH responsibilities and obligations
through mandatory training requirements. The
Occupational Safety and Health Committee, including
employee representatives and managers, forms a core
element of occupational safety and health consultation
and delivery within HSS.

HSS is committed to assisting injured employees

with work related injuries to return to work as soon

as medically appropriate in accordance with the
requirements of the Workers Compensation and Injury
Management Act 1981 (WA) and Injury Management,
A Guide for Employees 2016 (WA). Managers are
responsible for providing suitable duties for injured
employees where required and for ensuring that
support is provided to the employee following their
injury or illness and during their return to work.

Managers are responsible

for providing suitable duties
for injured employees where
required and for ensuring that
support is provided to the
employee following their
injury or illness and

during their return to work.
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Annual Estiamtes

Statement Of Comprehensive Income

2018/2019 Estimate

$'000s
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense mo72
Fees for visiting medical practitioners -
Contracts for services 4,312
Supplies and services 63,190
Finance costs -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26,420
Loss on disposal of non-current assets -
Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment 10,678
Other supplies and services 382
Other expenses 28947
Total cost of services 245,900
INCOME
Revenue
Patient charges -
Other fees for services 6,860
Commonwealth grants and contributions -
Other grants and contributions 751
Donation revenue -
Interest revenue -
Commercial activities -
Other revenue 15,396
Total revenue 23,007
Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets -
Gain on disposal of other assets -
Other Gains -
Total Gains -
Total income other than income from State Government 23,007
NET COST OF SERVICES 222,893
Income from State Government
Service appropriation 222,822
Assets (transferred) / assumed -
Services received free of charge 72
Royalties for Regions Funds -
Total income from State Government 222,893
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD o
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT / (LOSS)
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation reserve -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (o]
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Statement of Financial Position

2018/2019 Estimate

$'000s
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27939
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -
Receivables 3,630
Amounts receivable for services -
Inventories -
Other current assets 8,370
Non-current assets classified as held for sale -
Total Current Assets 39,938
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -
Amounts receivable for services 213,700
Receivables -
Intangible assets 131,372
Property, plant and equipment 19,685
Other non-current assets -
Total Non-Current Assets 364,757
Total Assets 404,695
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Borrowings _
Payables 24757
Provisions 21680
Other current liabilities 1,085
Total Current Liabilities 47,522
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings -
Payables -
Provisions 53N
Other non-current liabilities 6,751
Total Non-Current Liabilities 12,062
Total Liabilities 59,584
NET ASSETS 345,112
EQUITY
Contributed equity 345112
Reserves -
Accumulated surplus 6]
TOTAL EQUITY 345,112

Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018




Annual Estiamtes

Statement of Cash Flows

2018/2019 Estimate
$’000s

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation

Capital appropriation

Holding account drawdown

Royalties for Region Funds

Net cash provided by State Government
Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Employee benefits

Supplies and services

Finance costs

Grants and Subsidies

Contributions to Capital Works Funds

GST payments on purchases

Other Payments

Receipts

User charges and fees

Commonwealth grants and contributions

Other grants and contributions

Donations received

Interest received

GST receipts on sales

GST refunds with taxation authority

Other receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Payment for purchase of non-current physical and intangible assets
Receipts

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Repayment of finance lease liabilities

Repayment of borrowings

Repayment of other liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period
Cash transferred from Department of Health
Cash and Cash Equivalents transferred to other agencies

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

196,017

23,865

219,882

(110,058)

(108,966)

22,256

(196,017)

(23,365)

(23,865)

27939

27,939
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Financial State

Auditor General

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Health Support Services which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018, the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all
material respects, the operating results and cash flows of the Health Support Services for the year
ended 30 June 2018 and the financial position at the end of that period. They are in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's
Instructions.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Health Support Services in
accordance with the Auditor General Act 2006 and the relevant ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements. | have also fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence |
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinicn.

Responsibility of the Chief Executive for the Financial Statements

The Chief Executive is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the
Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's Instructions, and for such internal control as
the Chief Executive determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Executive is responsible for assessing the agency’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Western Australian Government has
made policy or funding decisions affecting the continued existence of the Health Suppart Services.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements. The cbjectives of my audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

Page 1 of 4
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As pant of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the agency’s internal contral,

- Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Chief Executive.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Chief Executive’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the agency's ability to
continue as a going concem. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion, My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Chief Executive regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

Report on Controls

Opinion

| have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on the design and implementation of
controls exercised by the Health Support Services. The controls exercised by the Health Support
Services are those policies and procedures established by the Chief Executive to ensure that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the
incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions (the overall control
abjectives).

My opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters cutlined in this repor.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the controls exercised by the Health Support Services are
sufficiently adeguate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment
of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2018,

The Chief Executive's Responsibilities

The Chief Executive is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining controls lo ensure
that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and
the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006, the
Treasurer's Instructions and other relevant written law.

Page 2 of 4
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Auditor General's Responsibilities

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility as an assurance practitioner is to
express an opinion on the suitability of the design of the controls to achieve the overall control
objectives and the implementation of the controls as designed. | conducted my engagement in
accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagements on
Controls issued by the Australian Audiling and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires
that | comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform my procedures to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether, in all material respects, the controls are suitably designed to
achieve the overall control objectives and the controls, necessary lo achieve the overall control
objectives, were implemented as designed.

An assurance engagement to report on the design and implementation of controls involves
performing procedures to obtain evidence about the suitability of the design of contrals to achieve
the overall control objectives and the implementation of those controls. The procedures selected
depend on my judgement, including the assessment of the risks that contrels are not suitably
designed or implemented as designed. My procedures included testing the implementation of those
controls that | consider necessary to achieve the overall contral objectives.

| believe that the evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion,

Limitations of Controls

Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the
controls are suitably designed and implemented as designed, once the controls are in operation, the
overall control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or noncompliance with laws and
regulations may occur and not be detected. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of the
suitability of the design of controls to future periods is subject to the risk that the controls may
become unsuitable because of changes in conditions.

Report on the Key Performance Indicators
Opinion

| have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on the key performance indicators of the
Health Support Services for the year ended 30 June 2018, The key performance indicators are the
key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency indicators that provide performance information
about achieving outcomes and delivering services.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the key performance indicators of the Health Support
Services are relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Health Support Services'
performance and fairly represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2018,

The Chief Executive's Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators

The Chief Executive is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key performance
indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's Instructions
and for such internal control as the Chief Executive determines necessary to enable the preparation
of key performance indicators that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror.

In preparing the key performance indicators, the Chief Executive is responsible for identifying key
performance indicators that are relevant and appropriate having regard to their purpose in
accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 904 Key Performance Indicators.

Auditor General's Responsibility

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility as an assurance practitioner is o
express an opinion on the key performance indicators. The objectives of my engagement are to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the key performance indicators are relevant and
appropriate to assist users to assess the agency's performance and whether the key performance
indicators are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion.
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| conducted my engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000
Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information issued by
the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that | comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements.

An assurance engagement involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the key performance indicators. It also involves evaluating the relevance and
appropriateness of the key performance indicators against the criteria and guidance in Treasurer's
Instruction 904 for measuring the extent of outcome achievement and the efficiency of service
delivery, The procedures selected depend on my judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making these risk assessments |
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the engagement in order to design
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

| beligve that the evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

My Independence and Quality Control Relating to the Reports on Controls and Key
Performance Indicators

| have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor General Act 2006 and the
relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements. In accordance with ASQC 1
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and Other Financial
Information, and Other Assurance Engagements, the Office of the Auditor General maintains a
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding
compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and Key
Performance Indicators

This auditor's report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the Health
Support Services for the year ended 30 June 2018 included on the Health Support Service's
website, The Health Support Service's management is responsible for the integrity of the Health
Support Service's website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Health
Support Service's website. The auditor's report refers only to the financial statements and key
performance indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information
which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators.
If users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent
risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited
financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the infarmation contained in this
website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators.

b

CAROLIME SPENCER
AUDITOR GENERAL

FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA
Perth, Western Australia

/7 September 2018
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEALTH SUPPORT SERVICES

Certification of Financial Statements for the year ended 20 June 2018

The accompanying financial statements of Health Suwpport Services have been prapared in
compliance with the provisions of the

Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairy the financial
transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and the financial posilion as at 30 June 2018,

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included
in the financial statemants misleading or inaccurate.

JM’ Z"‘""M / hi/‘/;" a/i/e/jf" = S

i

Sash Tomson Fobert Toms
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive
Health Support Services Health Support Services
: J2 - . 2oy R 7 S I e
Date: ¥ ﬂata.f,_.u;’.;ﬁ
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Health Support Services

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

COST OF SERVICES

Expanses
Employee benefils expense
Contracls for services
Supplies and services
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisalion expanse
Loss on disposal of non-current assels
Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipmeant
Other expenses
Total cost of services

INCOME

Revenue
Fees for services
Grants and contribulions

Other revenue
Total revenue

Total income other than income from State Government
MET COST OF SERVICES
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Service appropriations

Assets (transfarred)fassumed

Services received free of charge

Total income from State Government

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

Motes

a1
3.2
3z
A
511,52
6.2
az
3z

4.2
4.3

44

4.1
4.1
4.1

2018 2017
{$000) (5000}
109,265 105,030
3,768 3,687
70,356 69,618
- 1,007
28,217 31,476
911 -
7,243 4,432
33,535 29,521
253,255 243,771
8,016 8,278
370 523
828 850
9,214 9,652
9,214 9,652
244,081 234,119
247,203 254,879
201 .
184 184
247,678 255,063
3,597 20,944
3,587 20,544

The Stalermant of Comprehensive Incarme showld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Health Support Services

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018

2018 2017
Moles ($000) ($000)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 26,727 16,222
Receivables 6.1 3,134 3,044
Other current assels 6.3 7,730 6,608
Total Current Assets 37,691 25,874
MWon-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7.2.1 1,212 1.212
Amounts receivable Tor services 6.2 186,896 158,266
Property, plant and equipment 5.1 16,994 22,204
Intangible assels 5.2 137,370 148,130
Other non-current assels 6.3 75 45
Total Non-Current Assets 342,547 329,857
Total Assets 380,138 355,73
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 6.4 23,804 17,206
Provisions 3.1(b) 20,737 20,326
Other current liabilities 6.5 1,089 792
Total Current Liabilities 45,720 36,414
Nan-Current Liabilities
Pravisions 3.1(b) 5,311 5,447
Other non-current liabilities 6.5 7.877 7.032
Total Mon-Current Liabilities 13,188 12,479
Total Liabilities 58,908 50,893
MET ASSETS 321,230 304,838
EQUITY
Confributed equity 9.8 206,689 283,884
Accumulated surplusi{deficit) 9.8 24,541 20,944
TOTAL EQUITY 321,230 304,838

The Staternent of Financial Position should be read In conjunclion with the accompanying noles.
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Health Support Services

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Balance al start of period
Contribution by owners
Restated balance at start of period
Transactions with owners in their capacily as owners:
Capital appropriations
Other contributions by owners
Distributions to owners
Balance at end of period

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Balance at start of period
Surplus for the period

Balance at end of period

TOTAL EQUITY
Restated balance at start of period
Total comprehensive income for the period
Transaclions with owners in their capacity as owners
Balance at end of period

Motes
9.8

8.8

2018 2017

{$000) ($000)
2$a|042 e
3,852 280,042
283,894 280,042
7,315 3,824
5,480 -

- (72}
296,663 283,894
20,944 -
3,597 20,944
24,541 20,944
304,838 280,042
3,687 20,944
12,795 3,852
321,230 304,838

The Statement of Changes in Equily should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles.
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Health Support Services

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2018
2018 2017
Notes ($000) (5000)
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations 218,663 221,039
Capital appropriations 7.315 3,851
Net cash provided by State Government 225978 224,890
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (108,672) (102,680)
Supplies and services (75,324) (69,404)
Finance cosis - (282)
Other payments (33,530) (30,285)
Receipts
Other grants and contributions aro 523
Other receipls 8,813 8,061
Met cash used in operating activities 7.2.2 (208,343) (194,077)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Payment for purchase of non-current physical and intangible {7,130} (9,226)
assels
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assels -
Met cash used in investing activities {7,130) (0,226)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Repayment of finance lease liabiliies - (4,205)
Net cash used in financing activities - {4,205)
Met Increase In cash and cash equivalents 10,505 17,382
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 17,434 52
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 724 ET,BSQ 17,424

The Stalement of Cash Flows shouwld be read in confunchion with the accompanying nofes,
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Health Support Services

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1 Basis of preparation

Health Support Services (The Authority) is @ WA Govemment enfity and is controllad by the State of Western Australla, which is the
ultimate parent. The Authority is a nof-for-profit entity (a3 profit Is not its principal object).

These annual financial statements wene gulhorised for issue by the Chief Execulive Officer of the Authority on 12 Seplember 2018,

Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial stalements have been prepared In accordance with:

1) The Financial Management Act 2006 (FMA)

2) The Treasurers Inslruclions (the Instructions or TI)

2) Australian Accounting Stendards [AAS) Inclueding applicable interpretations

2) Where appropriale, those AAS paragraphs for not-for-profil entities have been applied.

The Financial Management Act 2008 and the Treasurer's Instruclions {the Instructions) take precedence ovar AAS. Several AAS are
maodified by the Instruclions to vary applcalion, disclosure format and wording, Where modification is required and has had a material
or significant financial effect upon the reporied resulls, detalls of that modification and the resulling financial effect are disclosed in the
notas to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial stalemenls are presented in Australian dollars applying the accrual basis of accounfing and using the historical cost
convention, Ceriain balances will apply a different measurement basis (such as the fair value basis). Where (his is the case the different
measurement basis Is disclosed in the associaled note, All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000).

Judgement and estimates

Judgements, estimates and assumplions are required 1o be made about financial Information being presenied. The significant
judgements and eslimates made in the preparation of these financlal stalemenis are disclased in the notes where amounts affected by
those judgements andfor estimates are disclosed. Estimates and assoclated assumplions are based on professional judgements
derived from historical experiance and various olher factors that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumsiances.

Contributed equity

AASE Interpretation 1038 'Conlribulions by Owners Made fo Wholly-Owned Public Saclor Entilies” requires transfers in the nature of
equity contributions, ofher than as a rasult of a restructure of administralive amangements, to be designated by the Government (the
owner) as contribulions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equily contributions.
Capital appropriafions have been designaled as conlributions by owners by Treasurer's Instruction 255 "Contributions by Owners made
o Wholly Owned Public Seclor Endities ' and have been crediled directly to Centributed Equily.

The transfer of nel assels loffrom other agancies, other than as a resull of 8 restruclure of administralive arrangements, are designated
as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discrelionary and non-reciprocal,
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2 Agency outputs
How the Authodly operates

This section includes information regarding the nature of funding the Authority receives and how this funding I ulilised to achieve the
Authorilies objeclives. This note also provides the distincion between controlied funding and administered funding:

Note
Agency Objectives 24
Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service 2.2

2.1 Agency chjectives

Mission

To deliver high qualily services (o support the delivery of optimal palient care.

Services

Service 1; Health Support Services

The provigion of purchased heallh suppor services Lo WA Heallh Entilles inclusive of corporate recruliment and appoiniment, employee
data management, payroll services, workers compensation calculation and payments and processing of termination and severance
payments, Health Supposd Services includes finance and business syslems services, IT and ICT services, worklorees senvices, projecl
manzagement of system wide projects and programs and |he management of the supply chain and whole of heallh conlracts,

2.2 Schedule of iIncome and expenses by service

The Authority has one service which is to provide a shared service of funclions of humen resowrces and payroll services, ICT suppor
services and the management of the supply chain for WA Health Service Providers. Refer lo Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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3 Use of our Funding
Expenses [ncurred in the delivery of services
This seclion provides addilional information aboul how the Authorily's funding is applied and the accounling policies thal are relevant for

an understanding of the ilems recognised in the financial statements. The primary expenses incurred by the Authosity In achleving lis
objeclives and (he relevant notes are:

2018 2017
Holes {$000) {$000)
Employee benefils expense 3.(a) 108,265 105,030
Employee benefits provision 31(b) 26,048 25773
Other expenses T A 33,535 24,521
3.1(a) Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 94,977 93,047
Termination Benefils 5,383 3,380
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (a) 8,805 8,503
108,265 105,030

{a) Defined contribwdion plans include West State, Gold Siate and GESS Super and olhar
eligible funds.

Wages and Salaries: Employee expenses include all costs related to employment including wages and salaries, fringe benefils tax and

leave enlilements.

Termination benefits: Payable when employment is lerminated before normal retirernent dale, or when an employee accapls an offer of
benefils in exchange for the termination of employment. Termination benefits are recognised when the authodly is demonsirably
commilled 1o terminaling the employment of current employees according to a detalled formal plan without possibilily of withdrawal or
providing termination benelits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefils falling due mare than 12 months
after the end of the reporing pericd are discounted to present value,

Superannuation: The amount recognised in profit or loss of the Stalement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contribulicns
paid to the GSS {concurrent conlribulions), the WSS, the GESBs, or other superannualion funds. The employer conlribution paid to the
Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) in respect of the G383 is paid back into the Consolidated Account by the GESB.

The GS5 is a defined benelit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government repering. However, it is a defined
confribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Authorly to GESB
exlinguishes the Aulhorily's cbligations to the related superannuation Eabikity,

Tha Awhority has no Eabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the
unfunded GSS transfer benefits aliributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer, Al
olher GSS chbiigations are funded by concurrent conlributions made by the Authorily lo the GESE.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS transfer benefils, and recoups from the Treasurer the
employer's share.
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3.1{b) Employee benefits provision

Provision is made for benefils accruing to employees In respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered up to the reporling dale and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

2018 2017
($000) (5000}
Currant
Emgplo benefils sl
Annual leave (a) 12,328 11,967
Time off in kew leave (a) 237 265
Leng service leave (b) 7,524 7,689
Deferred salary scheme (c) 247 405
20,737 20,326
Non-currant
Employven benefils provision
Leng service leave (B) 5,311 5,447
5,311 o447
Total provisions 26,048 25773
(a) Annual leave labilities and time off in liew leave llabilities: have been classified as
current as there ks no unconditional right to defer setllement Tor at least 12 months after the end 2018 2017
of the reporfing perod. Assessmenls indicate thal aclual setllerment of the liabiliies is ($000) {$000)
expeacted lo occur as follows:
Within 12 monihs of the end of the reporiing period 8,867 8,440
Mare than 12 months after the end of the repoding period 3,699 3792
12,566 12.232

The provision for annual leave Is calculated at the present value of expected paymenis to be made in relation 1o services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

{b) Long sarvice leave liabilities: have been classified as currenl where there is no unconditional right lo defer setilement for al least
12 months afier the end of the reporting period.

Pre-condilional and condilicnal long service leave provisions are classified as non-cument liabilities because the Authority has an
unconditional right lo defer the selllerment of the liability wntil the employes has compleled the requisile years of services.,

2018 2017
(5000) [S000)

Assessmenls indicate that aclual sellfement of the liabilitles is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of Lhe reporling pericd 1,981 1,768
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 11,254 11,368
13,235 13,136

The provision for long service beave is calculated al present value as the Authorily does not expect 1o wholly setlle the amounls within 12
months. The present value i measured taking Inmo account the present value of expecled fulure payments to be made in relation to
services provided by employees up to the reporiing dale, These payments are esfimaled using the remuneration rale expecled to apply
al the time of selllemenl, discounled using markel yields al the end of the reporing period on nalienal governmenl bonds with lerms lo
maturity ihal match, as closely as possible, the esfimated fulure cash outflows.

{c)} Deferred salary scheme liabilities: have been classified as cument where there is no

uncondilional right lo defer seftlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 2018 2097

pefiod. Assessments indicale that aciual setllement of the Rabililles is expected to oecur as ($000) (5000)

fallorwrs:

Within 12 months of the end of Ltha reporing period &7 243

More than 12 months after he end of the reperling pericd 179 162
247 405
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d) Key sources of estimation uncertalnty - long service leave

Key estimales and assumptions cancerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant
risk of causing & materdial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabiliies within the ned financial year,

Several estimates and assumplions are used in calculaling the Autherily's long service leave provision. These include:
= Expected future salary rales
= Discount rales
= Employee reteniion rales; and
= Expected fulure payments

Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carying amount of the long service leave provision. Any gain or loss
following revaluation of the present value of long service leave labilites is recognised as employes benefils expense,

3.2 Operational Expenditure

2018 2017

($000} {5000)
Contracts for services
Australian Digital Health Agency - Member Contribution 3,768 3687
Total contracts for servicas 3,768 3,687
Supplies and Services
Computer services 65312 63,959
Domestic charges 549 &03
Litility cosls 1,292 1,060
Subsidy spectacle scheme 24mM 2467
Sanilisation and wasie removal services 106 78
Administration and management services 70 T
Security services 121 141
Oiher 435 403
Total supplies and Services 70,356 68,618
Repairs, maintenance and consumable eguipment
Repairs and mainlenance 5,553 3,634
Consumable equipment 1,690 798
Total repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment 7,243 4,432
Other expenses
Telecommunication expenses 10,834 9,852
Workers compensation insurance (a) 1,523 1,354
Operaling lease expenses 14,556 14,451
Oither insurances 103 nr
Other employee relaled expenses 994 1,014
Printing and stalianery 453 430
Doubifid debls expense 5 -
Metor vehicle expenses 72 75
Other 4,995 2,458
Total other expenses 33,535 29,521
Total other expenditure 114,902 106,258
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Contracis for serviges
Conlracts for services are recognised as an expense in the reporiing peried in which they are Incurred.

Supplies and Services

Suppes and services are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which hey are Incurred. The carrying amount of any
malerials held for distribulion are expensed when lhe maledals are distributed.

Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment

Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment cosls are recognised as expenses are incured, except where they relate to the
replacement of a significant component of an assel. In thal case, the cosis are capilalised and deprecialed.

Cther expenses
Other operaling expenses generally represent the day-lo-day running cosls incurred in normal operations.
(a) Employee on-cost includes workers' compensalion insurance and other employment on-cosis. The on costs liability associated with
the recognilion of annual and long service leave liabiliies included at Mole 3.1 {b) Employee benefit provision. Superannuation
contribulions accrued as pant of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

4, Our funding sources
How we obtain our funding

This seclion provides additional Infermation about how the Authorily oblains its funding and the relevant accounting pelicy noles that
govem Lhe recognition and measurement of (his funding. The primary income received by the Authorily and the relevant noles are:

2ie 2017
Moles [$000) [$000)
Incame fram State Government 4.1 247,678 255,063
Fees for services 4.2 8,016 8,279
Grants and contribulizns 4.3 k] 523
Qther revenua 4.4 B28 850
4.1  Income from State Government 2018 2017
{s000) (so00)
Appropriation revenue received during the period:
Service appropriatiens (funding via the Depariment of Heallh) (a) 247,293 254 879
Assels iransferred fromi(to) other Statla government agencies during the period:
Equipmen lransferred from Western Australian Counlry Health Services 201 -
Total assets assumed 201 =
Services recelved free of charge from other Slale govemment agencles during the period:
Depariment of Finance - government accemmadation - leasing
184 184
Tolal services recaived 184 184
Total Income fram Stale Governmeant 247,678 255,063

{8) Service appropriations fund the nel cost of services delivered (as sel oul in nole 2.2) Approprialion revenue comprises the following

= Cash component; and

= A receivable (assel)

= The receivable (holding account - nole 6.2) comprises the following:
= The budgeled deprecialion expense for the year, and

- Any agreed increase in leave abiliies during the year.
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{b) Transfer of Assels: Discretionary lransfers of nel assels (assels and liabiliies) between Slale Government agencies free of
charge, are reporied under Income from State Government. Transfers of assels and Eabiliies in relation to a resiructure of
adminisirative arangemenis are recognised as distribulion to owners by the transferor and contribution by owners by the
transferae under AASB 1004 'Contributions® in respect of nel assets transferred. Other non-dlscretionary non-reciprocal ransfers
of assels and fabililies designated as contibutions by owners under Tl 955 are also recognised directly o equity.

Fees for services 2018 2017
{s000) {5000}
Mon elinlcal services lo ather health organisaflons 140 158
Telecommunication reccups 5,300 5,185
Other 2,485 2836
8,016 8,279

Revenue is recognised and measured ai the fair value of consideralion received or receivable. Revenue is recognised as and when the
service is provided.

Grants and contributions
2018 2017
{S000) {S000)
Australian Digital Health Agency = My Health Recaeds rollout 366 523
Cther 4 -
3ro 523

The My health records rollowt grant is a nen-reciprocal grant from the Commonwealth Depariment Australan Digital Healih Agency. The
lerms of the grant specily that the funding is o be used for the rollout of elecironic health records within Western Ausiralia, The grant has
been recognised in ils enlirety upon receipt.

Grant income arises from transactions described as:

- Mon-reciprocal (whera the ageny does nol provide approximale egual value in return lo @ parly providing goods or assels [or
extinguishes a liabilily); or

= Reclprocal (where the agency provides equal velue to the reciplent of the granl provider).

The accounting for thase are set out below.

For non-reciprocal granis, the Authorily recognises revenus when the grant [s receivable at iis fair value as and when ils fair value can
b reliably measured.

Contributions of services are only recegnised when a fair value can be reliably defermined and the services would have been purchased
If nol donated.

For reciprocal grants, the Authorily recognises income when it has satisfied s performance obligations under the lerms of the grant.
Granis can further be split bebween:

= General purpose grants
= Specific purpose granls

General purpose grants refers to grants which are not subject to conditions regarding their use. Specific purpose grants are received for
a particular purpose andior have condiBons altached regarding lheir use.
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4.4  Other Revenue

2018 2017
($000) (S000)
RiskCaver insurance premium rebate T 61
Parking 18 r
Criminal Screen Recording 64 66
Recoveries 537 385
Other 20 314
B28 B51

Other Revenue: is recognised as and when il is incurred.

5 Key assals
Assels the Authority uiilises for economic benefit or service potential

This section includes information regarding the key assels the Aulhority ulilises 1o gain economic benefits or pravide service patenilal.
The seclion sels ol both the key accounting policles and financial infarmation aboul the perdormance of hese assels:

Hotes 018 2017

{$000) {S000)

Properly, planl and equipment 8.1 16,984 22,204
Intangibles 52 137,370 148,130
154,364 170,334

Total key assets
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6.1 Property, plant and equipment

Yoar ended 30 June 2047 Loaschold

Computor Furnifune Medisal Other plant  Work [n Total
improvements equipment and fitings  equipmaent and progress
eguiprnent

(So00} [$000) (5000} [5000) [$000) [$000) [5a00)
1 duly 2018
Contribution by Owners - 12,302 33 266 682 12,185 26,478
Additions 4405 3288 ] 148 213 B.0GE
Transfers(a) 839 (B.351) -
Transfers between asset classes 491 481
Depreciation (284) (11,001) (3 (B8} (114} {11,489)
Write-down of assels {270) {Th {19) {68) (364}
Carrylng amount at end of pariod 4121 13,210 29 178 B4 4,017 22,204
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Year ended 30 June 2018 Leasehold Computer Furniture  Medical Other plant  Wark fn Total

Improvemenis equipment and fittings  equipment and progress

equipment

000y [5°000) (000 (50000 [§000) (500  (swo0)
1 July 2017
Canlribulion by owners 4405 2421 az 246 782 - 26,656
Acoumulated depreclation (284) (11,001) (3 (68) {114) 4,017 (T451)
Accurmulated impairment loss -
Carrying amount at start of period 4121 13,210 29 179 648 4,017 22,204
Additions - 250 - - - 3,989 4,248
Transfers(a) - - - - - - -
Transfers between assel classes - (54) - - . 10 (54}
Deprecialion 1605) 18.587) e 87) a3 (5,405}
Capitalized lo asaats 1,122 3,851 - - - (4,573} -
Carrying amount at end of perlad 4,638 8BGO0 26 22 525 3,053 16,994
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Initial recognition

ltems of propery, plant and equipment, costing 55,000 or more are measured Inifially al cosl. Where an assel is acquired for no or nominal
cost, the cost is valued at its fair value at the dale of acquisilion. ltems of propery, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are
immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar ilems which are
significant in lotal).

The cost of a leasehold improvement is capilalised and depreciated over the shorer of the remaining term of the lease or the estimated wseful
lifee of the leasehold improvement,

Subsequent measurement
All items of propery, plant and equipmenl are staled al hislorical cost less accumulated deprecialion and accumulaled Impairment losses,

Significant assumptions and judgements: The mest significant assumptions and judgements In estimating falr value are made in assessing
whether to apply existing use basis lo assets and in determining estimated economic fe.

5.1.1 Depreclation and Amortisation expense 2018 2m7
{5000} (5000
Deprecialion
Leaschold improvements 605 284
Computer equipment 8,687 11,00
Fumniture and fillings 3 3
Medical equipment 87 68
Other plant and equipment 123 114
Total Depreciation for the period 8,404 11,470

As at 30 June 2018 there were no indications of impairement to propery plant and equipment.
Please refer to nole 5.2 for guidance in relation 1o the impairment assessment thal been performed for inlangible assels.
Finlte useful lives

All properly, plant and equipment having a limited usefyl life are depreciated over thelr eslimated useful lives in a manner thal reflecis the
consumplicn of their future economic benefils. The exceplicns to this rule inclede items under operating leases.

Depreciation is calculaled on a straight line basis, al rales that allocale assel's value, less any estimaled residual value, over s eslimaled
uselul life. Typical estimated useful lives for the differen! assel classes for current and prior years are Included In the table below:

Leasehaold improvements Term of the lease
Computer equipment 4 1o 7 years
Furnifure and fillings 2 1o 20 years
Mator vehicles 3o 10 years
Medical equipment 10 years

Other plant and equipment Slo 10 years

The estimated useful Bves are reviewed al the end of each annual reporling period, and adjusiments should be made where appropeiate.

Leasehold improvements are depreclaled over the shorter of the [ease lerm and their useful lives.
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Impalrmant

Propery, planl and equipmenl and inlangible assels are lesled for any indicalion of impairment al the end of each reporling period. Where
there is an Indication of impairment, the recoverable amounl is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is bess than he carrying amount, he
assel |s considered impalred and I3 waillen down lo the recoverable amount, Where an assel measured at cost is wiitlen down Lo recoverable
amount, an impalrment loss is recognised in Stalemenl of Comprehensive Income. Where a previcusly revalued assel is willen down to
recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Authodly is a nol-for-profil
enlily, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s fair value less costs

to sell and depreciated replacement cost,

The risk of impairment is generally Emited o crcumstances where an assel's deprecialion is malerially understated, where the replacement
cast Is falling or where there ks a significant change In useful life. Each relevant class of assels Is reviewed annually to verily thal the
accumulated depreciationfamorfisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate

any impalrment risk from falling replacement costs.

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tesled for Impairment al the end of each reporiing period imespeclive of whelher there is any
indication of impalment.

The recoverable amount of assels identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the presenl value of fulure cash
fowes expecled 1o be derived from the assel. Surplus assels carried al fair value have no risk of malesal impairmanl where fair value is
determined by reference 1o markel-based evidence. Where fair valve is determined by reference lo deprecialed replacement cost, surplus
assets are a1 risk of impafrment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assels al cost are tesled for indications of impairment at the

end of each reporiing period.

5.2 Intangible assets

Year ended 30 June 2017 Computer Work In Total
Software Progress

(sooo) (#000) (s000)
1 July 2016
Contribution by cwners 164,432 1,685 168,117
Additions 768 1,742 2,510
Transfers from works in progress 1,080 (1,080) -
Amartisalion expense {20,007) - (20,007)
Transfers between asset classes - {491) {491}
Carrying amount at end of period 146,274 1,856 148,130
Year ended 30 June 2018 Compuler Waork in Tatal

Software Progress

(5000) {$000) {$000)
1 July 2017
Contribution by owners 166,262 1,856 168,138
Accumulaled depreciation {20,007} - (20,007)
Carrying amount at start of period 146,275 1,856 148,131
Additicns 284 3,134 3,428
Olher disposals (911} - {911}
Transfers 5,480 - 5,480
Transfers from works in prograss 3,606 {3.596) -
Transfers belween asset classes 64 {10} 54
Amorilsation expanse {18,812) - (18,812)
Carrying amount at end of period 135,986 1,384 137,370
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Initial recognition
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and inlemally generated intangible assats thal comply with the recognilion crileria as
per AASE 138.57 (as noted below), are capitalised.

Cosls incurred below these thresholds are immedialely expensed direcliy lo the Stalement of Comprehensive income.

Intangible assels are inflially recognised at cosl. For assels acquired al no cost or for nominal cost, the cosl is thelr falr value at the date of
acquisilion.

An inemal generated intangible asset arising from development (or fram the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if and only
if, all of the following are demaonstrated:

(a} The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asse! so Lhat & will be available for use or sale:

() An inlention to complete the intangible assel and use or sell il;

{c) the abiiity to use or sell the intangible assel:

(d) The intanglble assel will generate probable future economic benefit;

() The availiabilily of adeguale technical, inancial and olher resources to complefe the development and to use or sell the inlangible asset:)

(f) The ability 1o measure reliably the expenditure atiribulable to ihe intangible asset during its development.

Cosls incurred in the research phase of a project are immedialely expensed,

Subsequent measurement

The cosl model is applied for subsequent measurement of inlangile assels, requiring the asset 1o be caried at cosl less any accumulated
amorisalion and accumulaled impairment losses,

Charge for the pariod
218 2017
(s000) {5000}
Amoriisali
Computer software 18,812 20,008
18,812 20,006
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As at 30 June 2018 there were no Indizations of impairment 1o intanglble assets.
The Autharily hald no goodwill or inlangible assals with an indefinte useful [fe during the reporing perod.

Amoriisation of finite Hfe inlangible assels is calculated on 2 straight line basis al rates that allocale the assel's value over its eslimaled useful
life. ANl Intangible assets controlled by the Autherity have a finite useful life and zere residual valve. Estimated useful lives are reviewed

The eslimated useful lives for each class of intanglble assel are:
Computer 3-15years

Impairment of Intanglble assels
Intangible assets with finile useful Bves are lesled for impairment annually or when an indication of impairment is identified
The policy In connection with testing for impairment Is oullined in note 5.1.1.

E. Other assels and llabilltles

This section sels out those assels and liabilities thal arcse from the Authority’s controlled operations and includes other assets ulilised for
economic benefits and liabilities incurred during normal operations:

Netes 2018 2017
[§000) [5000)
Receivables 6.1 3,134 3,044
Amounts receivable for services 6.2 186,886 158,266
Other assels 6.3 7805 6,653
Payables 6.4 23,884 17,206
Qther labilities 6.5 10,052 8,807
6.1 Recelvablos
Cumant
Other receivables ars 316
Less: Allowance for impairment of receivables (5) -
Accruad revenue 1,148 1,525
GST Recelvables 1,616 1,203
Total current 3,134 3,044
Total recelvables 3,134 3,044

The Aulhority does not hold any collateral or olher credit enhancements as securily for receivables.

Receivables are recognised al onginal inveice amount less any allovances for uncollectible amewnts (Le. impairment). The carrying
amounl of nel rade receivables is equivalent Lo fair value as it is due for setllement within 30 days,

6.1.1 Movement of the allowance for impairment of receivables

2018 207
($000) {$000)
Reconclliation of changes in the allowance for Impairment
of recelvables:
Balance at start of period - -
Doubliul debls expense 5 =
Balance at end of period [ =

The collectability of recelvables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables idenfified as uncolleclible are writlen-off against the
allowance account, The allowance for uncallectible amounts (doubliul debls) Is raised when there is objeclive evidence that the Authority
will nol be able o collect the debls.
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6.2

6.3

Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)

2018 2m7

{5000) (5000}

Mon-current 186,895 158,266
Balance at end of perlod 186,396 158,266

Amounts receivable for services represent the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be used
far assel replacement or payment of leave liabdlily,

The Aulhority receives funding on an acerual basis, The appropriations are paid partly in cash and parily as an asset (holding account
recelvable), The accrued amounlt receivable is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave enlillements
and assel replacemant.

Other assels
208 2017

[S000} {5000}
Curment
Prepaymenis 7,730 6,535
Other ssie i 73
Total current 7,730 6,608
Nen-curient
Prepayments 75 45
Total non-current 15 45
Balance at end of period 7,805 6,653

Other non-financial assels include prepayments which represenl payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or thal part of
expendilure made in one accounling period covering a term extending beyond thal pariad.

Payables
2018 2017

[s000) (5000)
Current
Trade creditors 1.247 1,794
Other creditors 5 16
Accreed expenses 21,137 14,282
Accrued salaries 1,505 1,204
Total current payables 23,894 17.296
Balance at end of period 23,694 17,296

Payables are recognised al the amounts payable when the Authosly becomes obliged 1o make fulure payments as a resull of a purchase
of assels or services. The carryving amount is equivalend Lo fair value, as selllement is generally within 20 days,

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to stall but vnpaid at the end of the reporting period. Accrued salaries ane seliled within a
forinight of the reporling pericd end, The Authority considers the carrying amound of accrued salaries 1o be equivalent 1o ils fair value.

The accrued salares suspense accoun! (see nole 7.2.1 "Reconcilialion of cash’) consists of amounls paid annually, from Authority
appropriations for salaries expense, into a Treasury suspense accouni to meel the additional cash outflow for employae salary payments
in reporiing periods with 27 pays instead of the normal 26. Mo interest is received on this accounl.
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6.5 Other liabilities

2018 207
($000) {5000}
Current
Lease discount received in advance 1,086 Ta3
Paid parental leave scheme - 7
COilhar 4 2
Total current 1,083 793
Hon-Current
Leasa discount recelved In advance 7B77 7032
Total non-currant 7877 7032
Balance at and of period 8,966 7,825
7.  Financing
This section sels cul the maleral balances and discloswres associaled with the financing and cashilows of the Authority.
Mote
Finance cosls T4
Cash and cash equivalents 7.2
Reconclliation of cash 724
Reconciliation of operaling aclivities 722
Commitments 73
Mon-cancellable operaling lease commitments 734
Capital commitments 732
Qiher expendilure commitments 733
7.1  Finance costs
2018 2mr
(5000} {$000)
Buyout of finance leases = 725
Finance lease charges = 3
Other financial expenses - 9
Finance costs expensed - 1,007
Finance cost’ includes the buyoul of the data centre leases in the 201617 financial year.
7.2 Cash and cash equivalents
7.2.1 Reconciliation of cash
HNaotes 2018 2017
(S000) (5000}
Cash and cash equivalents 26,727 16,222
Restricled cash and cash equivalenis 81
Accrued salaries suspense account{a) 1212 1212
Balance at end of period 27,939 17,434

{a) funds held In the suspense account for the purpose of meeting the 2Tth pay In a repoding perod thal occurs every 11th year, This
account Is classified as non-curent for 10 out of 11 years,
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7.22 Reconciliation of net cost of services to nel cash flows provided byf{used In) operating activities

Notes 2018 2M7
{5000} S000/
Met cash used In operaling activitias (Statement of Cash Flows) (208,343) {194,077}
GST receivabbe 413 251
Mher curren! receivables (322) 4,578
Prepaymenis and olher current assels 1,195 (2,373)
Other non-cument assels 30 45
Payables (6.588) 1.533
Currenl provisions (410) (1,616}
MNon-currend provisions 136 (B0O7)
Cther current liabilities (288) {318)
Other non-cument liabilities {8d4d) (6. 344)
Morecash ileme;
Doubtiul debls expense (5) =
Depreclation and amoriisatlon expense (28,217) {31,478)
Met gainf{lass) from disposal of non-cument assets (911) -
Services received free of charge {184) (184)
Wiile down of property, plant and equipment 5 (364)
Adjustment Tor olther non-cash llems o] {3,167)
Met cost of services (Statement of Comprehensive Income) (244 0B1) (234,113)
7.3 Commitments
7.3.1 Non-cancellable operating lease commitmants
2018 2017
($000) (000}
Commilments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
Wilhin 1 year 11,574 13,047
Later than 1 year, and nol laler than 5 years 38,270 35,849
Later than 5 years 23,465 32,155
Balance at end of period 73,300 81,051
Operaling leases are expensed on a slraight line basis over the lease lerm as this represents the pallem of benefits derived from the
leased properties.
7.3.2 Capital expenditure commitments: 18 2017
Capital expendilure commitments, being conracled capilal expendilure additional 1o the [5000) (S000)

amounls reporled in the financial statemenls are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 5,083 806
Later than 1 year, and nol laler than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years =

5083 BOB

The totals presenied for capital commilments are GST inclusive,

7.3.3 Other expenditure commilments: 2018 207
Other expendilure commilments contracted for at the reporting period bul nol recognised as ($000) {5000}
liabilities are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 48,130 57,090

Laler than 1 year, and not later than 5 years . 27,872 66,138

Laler than 5 years - 430
76,102 123,678

The totals presented lor ather expenditure commilmeants are GST Inclusive,

84 Health Support Services Annual Report 2017-2018



Financial State

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Judgements made by management In applying accounting policles - cperating lease commitments
The Aulhority has enlered Into a number of leases for buildings for branch office accommeodation. Some of these leases relaled o
buildings of a temporary nature and it has been determined that the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards Incidental lo
cwnership. Accordingly, these leases have been classified as operaling leases.

8. Risks and Contingencies

This note sets cut the key risk management policles and measurament lechniques of the Authority.

Note
Financial risk managemen B
Contingent assels 821
Centingent labilities 822

8.1  Financial risk management

Financial insirumenis held by the Authority are cash and cash eguivalenls, resticled cash and cash equivalents, recelvables and
payablas. The Aulhority has limiled expesure fo financial risks, The Authority's overall risk management program focuses on managing
the risks identified befow.

{a) Summary of risks and risk management

Cradit i
Credil risk arises when there is the possibilly of the Authority's recelvables defavlting on their contractual obligations resulling in financial
loss to the Autharily,

The maximum exposure lo credil risk at the end of the reporting peried in relation to each class of recognised financial assels is the
gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the lable

Credit risk associated wilh the Authorily's financial assets is generally confined o patient fee deblors. The main recelvable of the
Authorily is the amounts receivable for senvices (holding account). For recelvables clher than government agencles and patient fee
deblors, the Aulhorily trades only with recognised, cradilworthy Lhird parties. The Authority has policies In place to ensure that sales of
producls and services are made lo cuslomers with an appropriate credit history. In addilion, recelvable balances are monitored on an
ongaing basis with the result that the Authority's exposure to bad debts is minimised. At the end of the reporting period, thers wara no
significant concentralions of credit risk.

All debls are individually reviewed, on a imely basis at 30, 60, 20 and 120 days. In circumsiances where a third parly is rasponsible for
payment, or there ane legal considerations, payment of accounts can be delayed considerably. Unpaid debls are referred 1o an external
debi collection service within six months of the account belng ralsed,

Allowance for impairment of financial assels is calculaled based on objective evidence such as observable dala indicating changes in
client credit ralings. For financial assels (hat are eilher past due or impalred.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financlal obligations as they fall due. The Authonity is exposed Lo liquidity rsk

through ils normal course of operations.
The Autharily has appropriale procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monlloring forecas! cash Tlows
1o ensure thal sufficlent funds are available to meet ils commilments.

Marked risk

Market risk ks the risk thal changes in markel prices such as forelgn exchange rates and imerest rales will affect the Aulhority’s income
or the value of Its holdings of financlal instruments. The Authority does not trade In forelgn currency and Is not materaly exposed to
olher price risks.
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{b) Categories of financial Instruments

The carrying amaounts of each of the following categodes of financial assels and financial liabiliies at the end of the reporling period are:

2018 2017
{$000) {5000)
Einancinl assals
Cash and cash equivalents 26,727 16,222
Restricied cash and cash equivalents 1,212 1,212
Loans and receivables (a) 186,413 160,107
Total financlal assets 216,352 177,541
Fi L liabili
Payables 23,894 17,286
Health Suppert Services
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
el Ageing analysis of financial ssasis
Aged anakysis of financial assots
Bast due but not imgaked
hot past due Impairad
Camying amount  and nol Morg than Financial
impaired | 1-3monlhs 3-12 months  1-8 years 5 years antels
{5000} {3000} (5000} {5000) 13000) (soody
18
Cash and cash equivalanis 28,727 ko) - . . -
Foasirictod cash and cash equivalents 1,212 1212 - - - i
Recelvables (3} 1518 1,487 17 3 2 5
Amnunts recaivable far services 186,606 185,808 . . - -
216,353 HE 332 17 z Fl 5
17
Cash ard cash equivalents 16222 16222 - -
Restricied cash and cash equivalents 1212 1212 - - Z
Feceivaties (2) 1,841 1841 . - -
Amounts recehable for services 158,266 158266 - - = -
177,540 177,540 2 z

(a} Ther amount of recelvables axciudes the GET mcovemabie frem ATO (ststulory rceivabie)
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[d4) Liguidity Risk and lvlorest Rate Exposure

Liguidity rigk and inerest ralg GXpoEUrG
Thee Scliorwing kable delals the Authorily's interest ale and The o ity analysis of assels and financial kabilities, The matwity analysis seciion ckdes intevest §
w#mmmmmnmmmﬂummmﬂ-ﬂm

Mty daies
Floed Variabio Hon-
AVETAQE Camrying interadd Interest linferest Mowmirel Up i 3 months More dh
el Bmeunl raly e by Amsunt 3 months 1o 1year  -Bysars 8 yean
interust rale
— k. {5500 {5000} {5000} (s00%) 1| (sboOy | gsoomy  (s000)  [so0m (8000)
Elnansial Asgete
Cash and cash equvakings - Fh - w77 W
Resiricied cash and cash eguivalents - 1212 - 1212 1212
Focobables - non Inters! bearig (4] A 1518 2 1518 1518
fvabin for services . 106,855 . i 188,856 145,466 . A
FT¥E] : - Ggs|  gege B TTY
Financial Lishilities
Payables = 38 - 23,894 23,804 3804 = =
{#) The amount of recehables axchudes the GET bl feam ATO (Mistatory recairable)
Health Support Services
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
{41 Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Exposure {continmsed)
Inigies] (e exposuie Mabarity datey
Wisighled Fired Variable M
average Caerying Intnrent inferest inferest | Mominal Upls 3 mongs Mare than
-H:“ ‘mmiount raba 1] Beanng Amoust 3 months 101 your 1-5 yides S yoars
o % 15000 (5000} LS008 (0004 (000 (5000} 150001 IEDO0N  (SOON
Elnanchl Apsets
Cath and cash equivalents . 0a - 1522 16222 . - -
Resiriciert cash and cash equisants . 1212 5 12 132 . - .
Recahwables {a) - 1,841 - 1841 1841 - - =
Amcunis retaiably fof pervices - 158,268 - 158266 158,268 - - 158,206
177 541 : P 7 N I T2 z z PR
Finarcial Liabiitks
Payasies . 17,208 . i 17,266 17,296 17,208 = -
I7.3M E - 17,796 17296 i) 5 =

) T ameunt of recaivables sxchudes the 5T recovarable from ATO {staluiory recelabin}
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8.2 Contingent assets and liabilities

Confingent assefs and confingent liabilifles are not recognised in the stalerment of financial position bul are disclosed and, if quantifiable, are
measured at neminal value.

Centingent assels and liabillies are presenled Inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively
8.2.1 Contingent assets

Al the reporting dale, the Authodly is nol aware of any conlingeni assels.

8.22 Contingent liabllities

Al tha reporting dale, the Authorly is nol aware of any conlingent liabilities

9 Other disclosures

This section Includes additional material disclosures required by accounting slandards or olher proncuncements, for the understanding of this

financial report.

Hote
‘Events occurring aller the end of the reporiing peried 8.1
Fuwee impact of Australian standards issued nel yel operalive 82
Key management personnel 93
Transacfions Wilh Related parties 9.4
Relaled bodies 95
Administered trust accounts 9.5
Remuneration of auditors ar
Equily 9.8
Supplementary financial information 99
Explanatory statement 9,10

a4 Events occurring after the end of the reparting period
There were no evenls cccurring afler the reporting perod which had significant financial effects
on these financial slalements.
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9.2  Future Impact of Australlan Accounting Standards not yel operative

The Authority cannot eardy adopt an Auslralian Accounting Standard unless specifically permilied by T1 1101 Applizalion of Australian
Accounling Standards and Oither Pronouncements or by an exemptlon from Tl 1101, Consequently, the Autherity has not applied early
any of the following Australian Accounting Standards thal have been Issued thal may Impact the Authority. Where applicable, the
Authority plans {o apply the following Ausiralian Accounting Standards from their application date. Where applizable, the Authority plans
to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.

Tille Operative for
reporing periods
beginning onfafter

AASB O Financial insiruments 1 Jan 2018

This Standard supersedas AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremen! , introducing a number of changes lo accounling trealments,

The mandalory application date of this Standard is currenlly 1 January 2018 after
being amended by AASE 2012-6, AASE 2013-0 and AASE 2014-1 Amendments o
Auslralian Accounling Slandards. The Aulhorly has not yel delermined Ihe
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASE 15 Revenwe from Conlracis with Cuslomers 1 .Jan 2018

This Standard establishes the principles that the Authority shadl apply to report useful
information to users of financial slatements about the nature, amount, liming and
uncerainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The
mandalory application date of lhis Standard is currently 1 January 2019 afier being
amended by AASE 2016-7.

The Authorily's income is principally derived from appropriations which will be
measured under AASB 1058 Incame of Not-for-Profit Entities and will be unaffecied
by this change. However, the Authorily has nol yel determined the potential impact of
the Standard on 'Granis and conirbutions’ revenues. In broad terms, it is anticipaled
that the terms and conditions attached 1o this revenue ilem will defer revenue
recognition until the Authority has discharged ils performance obligations.

AASE 16 Leasas 1 Jan 2019

This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assels and llabililes for all lzases with a term of more than 12 months,
undess the underlying assel is of low value. The Authorily has nod yel delermined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard,

Whilst the impact of AASBE 16 has nol yet been quantified, the enlity currenlly has
operating lease commilmenls for 5 73,952,129, The worth of non-cancellable
operating leases with the Aulhorily anticipates most of this amount will be brought
onle the statement of financial position, excepting ameunts perlinent to shor-term or
low value leases. Interest and amortisation expenses will increase and rental

AASHB 1058 Income for Not-for-Proft-Enlitles 1Jan 2018

This Standard clarifies and simplifies the income recognilion requirements that apply
te nol-for-profil (NFP) entifies, more closely reflecting the economic reality of NFP
entity transactions that are notl conlracts with customers. Timing of income
recognitien is dependent on whether such a transaclion gives rise to a liabllity, &
performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service), or, an obligalion 1o
acquire an assel. The Authorly has not yel determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
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AASE 1053

AASB 2010-7

AASE 2014-1

AASE 2014-5

AASE 2014-T

AASE 2016-3

AASE 2016-B

Service Concession Arrangements: Granltors

This standard addresses lhe accounting for a service concession arangement (a
type of public privale parinership) by a granlor thal is a public seclor entily by
prescribing the accounting for the amangemenl from the grantor's perspeclive,
Timing and measurement for the recognition of a specific asset class ocours on
cormmencement of the arangement and the accounting for associaled labiliies is
delermined by whether the grantes is paid by the granior or users of the public

Amendmenis lo Auslralian Accounling Slandards arising from AASB 9 [December
2010) [AASE 1, 3, 4, 8, 7, 107, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 124, 127, 128, 131, 132,
136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5 10, 12, 19 & 127]

Thiz Standard makes consequential amendments (o other Australlan Accounting
Standards and Inlerpretalions as a resull of lssuing AASE 9 In December 2010,

The mandalory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6
and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018, The Authorly has not yet delerminad the
application or the polential impact of the Standard.

Amandments lo Auslralian Accounting Standardls

Part E of this slandard makes amendments 1o AASE 9 and consegquential
amendments to other Slandards. I has nod yel been assessed by the Authority 10
determine the application or polential impact of the Standard,

Amendments lo Auslralian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

This Standard gives effect lo the consequential amendments fo Ausiralian
Accounting Standards (including Interprelations) arising from the issuance of AASB
15. The Authorily has nol yet determined the application or the polential impact of the
Standard.

Amendments fo Ausiralian Accounling Slandards arising from AASB 9 (December
2014)

This Stlandard gives effect to the consequentlal amendmenis to Australlan
Accounting Standards (inckeding Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASE 9
{December 2014). The Authority has not yel determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.

Amendments to Ausiralian Accounting Standards = Clanfications lo AASE 15

This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, principal versus agenl
considerations, iming of recognising revenue from granling a licence, and, provides
further iransitional provisions o AASB 15. The Authority has nel yet defermined the
application or the potenlial impacl.

Amendments fo Auslralian Accounting Slandards = Auslralian Implementation
Guidance for Not-for-Profit Enlities

The Standard inserls Ausltralian requirements and authorladlive implamentation
guldance for not-for-profil entilies into AASE 9 and AASE 15. This guidance assisis
nol-for-profil entities in applying those Standards lo particular iransactions and olher
evenls. There is no financial impact.
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9.3 Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority

The Authority has determined thal the key management personnel include Minislers, members
and senlor officers of the Authority. Howewver, the Aulhority is not obigated (o compensale
Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’ compensation may be found in the
Annual Report on Stale Finances. Total compensation for key managemeni personnel,
comprising members and senlor officers of the Authority for the reporting period are presented
within the following bands:

Compensation of mambers of the accountable autherity:

E
€n

Cempensation Band (§)
30 - §10,000
$10,001 - 520,000
$20,001 - 530,000
$80,001 - $90,000
$100,001 - $110,000
$120,001 - $130,000
$140,001 - $150,000
$150,001 - $160,000
$160,001 - $170,000
$180,001 - $190,000
$230,001 - 5240,000
$240,001 - 250,000
$250,001 - 260,000
$260,001 - 270,000
$300,001 - $310,000
£320,001 - $330,000
$330,001 - 340,000
$350,001 - 370,000
$380,001 - $390,000
Total:

. S
Erly 5 = o oq o ok ok gy omb ok ok owd ok g g g =k

-
S i T o X. [

E

2017
(5000) {5000}

Shor-lerm employes benefits 1,913 1,612
Post-employment benefils n 136
Other long-lerm benefils [{:5] 22
Termination benefils 122 -

Tolal rernuneration of senior efficers 224 1,770

Total compensation Includes the superannuation expensa incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers,
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2.4 Transactions with related parfies
The Authorly is a wholly owned and conirolled enlity of the State of Weslemn Ausiralia. In conducting its actlivities, the Autharity s
required lo pay various taxes and levies based on the standerd terms and conditions thal apply to all tax and levy payers lo the Stale
and enlilies related to Stale.
Related parlies of the Authosily include:
= all Minksters and their elose family members, and their controlled or jeintly controlled enfities;

= all senior officers of Health Supporl Services and the Depardment of Health and their close family members, and their controlled or
Jointly controlled entities;

- ather statulory autharilies and public secior entities, including related bodles Included in the whale of govemment consalidated financial
stalements; and

- associaled and joinl veniures, thal ane included in the whole of governmenl consolidated financial slatements; and
= the Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB).
Significant transactions wilh.gmrnrnant related entities
Significan! lransactions Include:
- service appropriations (note 4.1)
= capital appropriaticns (note 4.1)
= services received free of charge (note 4.1)
- superannualion payments lo GESB (nole 3.1)
= felecommunication recoups [note 3.2)
= sendees provided free of charge (note 9.9)
Material transactions with other related parties:
The Authorily had no malerdal relaled parly transaclions with Ministers/senior officers or their close family
members or their controlled (or jeinfly confrolled) entities for disclosure.
Duwring the year, the Auwhorily paid 53,451,088 in employes superannuation conlrbutions to the Gowarmment
Employees Superannuation Board,
9.5  Related bodies

A related body is a body which receives more than half its funding and resources from the
Authorily and Is subject 1o cperational control by the Authority,

The Authorily had na related bodies during the financizl year,
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9.6 Administerad trust accounts

Funds held in these trust accounts are not controlled by the Authority and are therefore nol
recegnised in the financial statements.

The Authorty administers a trust account for madical practitioners exercising a ‘right of
private practice’ when treating privately referred non-inpatients.

A summary of the lransactions for this trust account is as fellows: 2018 M7
(5000) ($000)
Balanca at the starl of period 5 18
Add Receipis 3 43
B 67

Less Payments {5} (62)
Balance at the end of period 3 5

9.7 Remuneration of auditors

Remuneration payable 1o the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial
year is as follows:

2018 217
£000) (5000}
Auditing the accounts, financial stalements and key performance indicalors 187 135
8.8 Equity
2018 217
{$000) (S000)
Contributed equity
Balance at start of period (a) 283,894 280,042
Restated balance at start of period 283,894 280,042
Contributions by owners (o]
Capital appropriation (b) 7,318 3,924
Transfer of assels from the Depariment of Health %;_gﬂ =
12795 3,924
Distributions to owners (c) (d)
Transfer of employee entillements between WA Health entities - (72)
Total contributions by owners - [?T_}_
Balance at end of peried 296,680 283,894
{a) Balance at the starl of the period represents assets and liabililies contibuted as a resull of
establishment of the Aulhorily under the new Health Service Act 2016 eflective 1 July 2016,
Summary of assels and liabikies contributed are as Tollows:
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - 52
Receivables = 126,143
Properly, plant and equipment - 25,479
Inlangible assets - 168,117
Olher current assels = 8,979
- 326,770
LIABILITIES
Payables - 17,785
Borrowings - 4,205
Provisions - 23,551
Other Eabiities - 1,187
- 46,728
Net Contribution - 280,042
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5.9

(a}

{b)

(d)

(b) Treasurer’s Instruction (TI) 955 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public
Seclor Enlities’ designates capilal appropriations as contribulions by owners in accordance with
AASE Inlerpretation 1038 'Contribulions by Owners Made lo Wholly-Owned Public Sector
Enlities’.

{c) AASB 1004 "Confribulions’ requires transfers of net assels as a result of a restructure of
administrative arrangements 1o be accounted for as confributions by cwners and distribulions to
OWNETS.

Tl 855 designates non-discrationary and non-reciprecal transfers of net assels batween stale
governmen] agencies as confributions by owners in accordance with AASE Interpratation 1038,
Where lhe transferee agency accounts for a non-discretionary and non-reciprocal transfer of
nef assels as a conlibulion by owners, the transferor agency accounts for the lransfer as a
distribufion lo ownars.

{d) TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assels lo Government to be accounted for as
distribulion lo cwners in accordance with AASE Interprelation 1038,

Accumulated surplus
Balance al start of period

Resull for the period

Balance at end of period

Supplamentary financial information

Revenue, public and other property written off

a}  Revenue and debis wrilten off under the authority of the Accountable Authority

b}  Public and other properly wrilten off under the authorily of the Accountable Authorily

Losses of public moneys and other proparty

Losses of public maneys and public or other property through thefl or defaull

Less amaunt recovensd

Mot losses

Services provided free of charge

During the period the following services wene provided lo olher agencies free of charge:

Merth Melropelilan Healih Services

South Metropolitan Health Services

Easl Melropolitan Health Services

Child and Adolescent Heallh Services

Wa Counlry Heakllh Servicas

The Queen Elizabeth || Medical Cenlre Trust
Quadriplegic Centre Board

Menlal Health Commission

Health and Disabllity Services Complainis Office
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3,507 20,944
24,541 20,944
55419 63,114
54,043 64,370
41,759 42,602
30,668 28,168
31,799 26,53
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123 115
3,291 3,068
165 170
217,308 228,229
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8.10 Explanatory statement

All variances belween estimates (original budget) and aclual resulls for 2018 are shown below, Narralives are provided for selecled major
variances, which are generally grealer than:

- 5% and $4.88 millicn for the Slalement of Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows; and

= 5% and $7.1 million for the Statement of Financial Posilion
Variance Variance
between between

Statement of Comprehensiva Incemea 2018 2018 2017 estimate  actual 2017
Estimates Actual Actual  and actual and 2018
COST OF SERVICES Mole {s000) (5000) {5000) {5000) ($000)
Expenses
Employee benefils expense 104,483 108,265 105,030 4,782 4,235
Conlracls for sarvices 4175 3,768 3,887 {407) B
Supplies and services 1 54,280 70,356 GaG18 G076 1,738
Finance costs - - 1,007 - {1,007
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28,582 28,217 31,476 (385) (3,250)
Loss on disposal of non-cumen] assels - a1 - am an
Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment 5,886 7,243 4,432 1,357 281
Other supplies and sarvices 560 - - (580) -
Other expenses 2 41,404 33,535 20521 (7,888) 4,014
Total cost of services 249,370 253,295 243,771 39258 9,524
INGOME
Revenue
Fees for senvices 7.082 BO1G 8,273 934 (263)
Grants and condribulions 958 aro 523 (588) (153)
Other revenua 418 828 850 410 (22}
Total Revenus B,458 8,214 8,652 756 (438)
Total Income cther than Income from State B,458 9,214 9,652 756 (438)
Government
HET COST OF SERVICES 240912 244,081 234,118 3168 9,062
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Senvice approprialions 240,842 247,293 254,879 6451 {7.588)
Assels (ransfemed Yassumed 2m - 2m 201
Services received frea of charge T0 184 184 114 {0}
Total incoma from State Governmant 240912 247 6TE 255,063 6,766 {7,285)
SURPLUS/{DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD . 3507 20,044 3,597 [17.347]
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMENLOSS) FOR . 3,507 20,544 3,597 17.347)
THE PERICD
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Significant variances between estimated and actual for 2018

Sucplies and services and Olher axpenses
Thie higher Supplies and sendces cosis can largely be alifibutable fo the Perth Children's Hospilal ICT costs, H5S did nol receive lhe
funding for this fem in the onginal 201718 budgel submission.

2 Olher expenses
HSS received a budgel cul during the 2017-18 financial year, as part of the mid year review process. that was nol included wilhin the original
budget. HSS had sel aside funds in the olher expenses calegory o provide for Lhis cul.

Varfance Variance
between between
2018 2018 2017 estimale  actual 2017
Staternent of Financial Position Estimales Actual Actual and actual and 2018
Hole (5000) (s000) (5000) (5000 (5000)
ASSETS
Current Assols
Cash and cash equivalents 3a 16,222 26,727 16,222 10,505 10,505
Receivables 3,034 3,134 3,044 100 20
Amounls receivable for services - . - -
Other cumrent assels 7,184 7.730 G.608 546 113
Total Currént Assals 26,440 3r.5m 25674 11,154 11,7
Non-Current Assels
Rastricled cash and cash equivalents 1.212 1.212 1212 - -
Amounts receivable for senvices 185,848 186,896 158,266 48 28,630
Property, plant and equipment 4.b 23,810 16,994 22,204 (6,818) {5,210)
Inlangible assets LT 122,866 137,370 148,130 14,404 {10,760)
Other nan-current assels 75 45 75 30
Tetal Non-Current Assels 334,836 342,547 320,857 FAER 12,600
Total Assets 361,276 360,138 355,731 18,862 24,407
LIABILITIES
Current Liabllities
Payahblas 20,338 23,894 17.286 3,556 6,598
Bomowings - - - -
Provisions 20,326 20737 20,326 411 411
Other curren liabililies g2 1,083 782 247 287
Total Current Liabilities 41,456 45,720 38414 4,264 7,306
Hon-Currant Liabliitles
Borrowings - - = .
Provisions 5447 5311 5,447 (138) [138)
Chher non-current liabilities T.032 7877 7,032 B45 B45
Tedal Hon-Current Liabilities 12,478 13,188 12,479 To9 T09
Total Liabilities 53,935 58,908 50,393 4,873 B,0M5
NET ASSETS 307,341 321,280 304,838 13 8RG 16,302
EQUITY
Contributed equity 288,918 286,680 283,804 7.7 12,785
Accumulated surplus 18,423 24.541 20,944 6118 3.5a7
TOTAL EQUITY 307,341 321,230 304,838 13,889 16,392
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Slgnlificant varlances between estimated and actual for 2018

3 LCash and cash equivalents
The higher cash balance in June 2018 againsi esSmate can largely be atidbulable 1o the higher payables balance thal H3S had al the end
of the financial year.

4 Proparty, ptant and equipmant
The lower balance againsi budget can be attibutable 1o allocation of Wark In Progress budget for 201718, which was anticipaled ko be
spenl agalnst Propery planl and equipment, however the spend Incurred in 20171 B was agalnst the Infangible assels calegory.

Inlanoible Assals
Increase can largely be alsibulable Lo the transfer ef Perih Children's Hogpital Information Cemmunicalion Technology assels of $5.450M in
the 20178 financial year.

Significant variances between actual for 2017 and 2018

LCash and eash equivalanls
The increase in cash balance in June 2018 can largely be attributatle lo the higher payables balance that HSS had al the end of the
financial year.

Progedty Plant and Equipment
The decreasa agalnst actual pasition in June 2018 can largely be attributable to depreciation expense during the 2017718 financial year.

Intangibip Assels
Fleasea refer lo comment 5 Intangible assets for furlher datalls.

Variance Variance
between between

2018 2018 2017 eslimate  actual 2017
Estimales Actual Aclual and actual and 2018
Mate {5000) (5000) (5000) (5000) (s000)
Statement of Cash Flows
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations 212,260 218,663 221,038 6,403 (2,376}
Capital appropriations 6d 5,024 7315 3,851 2,201 3464
Net cash provided by State Government 217,284 225878 224,850 B.694 1,088
Ulilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM DFERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employes benafils e {104.483) (108,672) {102,680) (4,188) (5.992)
Supplies and services/Other payments ki {116,235) (75,324) {69,404) 40,911 (5,820)
Finance cosls - (282) = 282
Other payments {33,530) {30,285) {33,530) (2,235)
Receipts
Oither granis and contributions Q56 370 523 (588) (153}
Other receipls 7.500 8,613 B,061 1,313 752
Net cash used In operating activities (212,260) (208,343) [194,077) 37 {14, 266)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paymenis
Payment for purchase of non-current physical and 8 {5,024) {7,130) {9,226) (2.108) 2,096
intangible assels
Het cash used in investing activities [5.024) (7,130} (9,226) (2,106) 2,098
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paymaenis
Repayment of finance leasa Rabilities - - (4.205) - 4,208
et cash used in financing activities - - {4,205) - 4,205
Het increase [ ([decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 10,505 17,382 10,505 (8.877)
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the perod 8 17,434 17,434 52 - 17,382
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE EMD OF PERIOD 17,434 7,838 17,434 10,505 11!'5%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Significant variances between estimated and actual for 2018

Capitasl appropriations
The higher capital appropriations can largely be explained by the addition of funding during the 2017-18 financial year for WebPAS projeci,
which ks o fund the roll out a new patlent administration lo melropelitan hospilal sfes.

L
The lower balance can be atiibutable lo the iming of paymenls, as a resull HS3S has a higher payables and cash balance in June 2018,

el

Please see comment 6 Capilal Appropriations for furher detalls, y

sh eguival beqinni i
Please refer to comment 3 Cash and cash equivalents for furlher delails,

Significant variances botween actual for 2017 and 2018
iaki
Please see commenl 6 Capilal appropriations for further details.

Emplovee benafils
The Increase in cash paid for Employee Enlitlements can largely be aliibuted 1o (he VTSS payments made during the 201718 financial
year.

Supplies and services/Oihar paymants
The increase against prior perod can largely be atidbutable to planned project managemant and consultancy costs in the 201718 financial
year,
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